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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will be
held at the Theobroma Conference Room, First Floor, Hotel Emas, Jalan Utara, 91000 Tawau, Sabah on Friday, 29 July
2011 at 9.00 a.m. to transact the following:AGENDA
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 January 2011 together
with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

(Resolution 1)

2.

To approve Directors’ fees amounting to RM36,000 for the year ended 31 January 2011.

(Resolution 2)

3.

To re-elect Mr. Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei who retires as a Director of the Company
pursuant to Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

(Resolution 3)

4.

To re-elect Mr. Tham Vui Vun who retires as a Director of the Company pursuant to Article
93 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

(Resolution 4)

5.

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the
Directors to fix their remuneration.

(Resolution 5)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions
respectively:6.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
APPROVAL FOR ISSUANCE OF NEW ORDINARY SHARES
PURSUANT TO SECTION 132D OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965
“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act, 1965, the Articles of Association of the
Company and approvals of the relevant authorities, the Directors be and are hereby
empowered pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 to issue new ordinary
shares of RM1.00 each in the Company, from time to time and upon such terms and
conditions and for such purposes and to such persons whomsoever as the Directors may, in
their absolute discretion deem fit and expedient in the interest of the Company, provided
that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 10%
of the issued and paid-up share capital for the time being of the Company AND THAT the
Directors of the Company be and are hereby empowered to obtain the approval for the
listing and quotation for the additional shares so issued on the Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad and such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company.”
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(Resolution 6)

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

7.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION
PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR EXISTING RECURRENT
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR ADDITIONAL
RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

“THAT subject to the Companies Act, 1965, the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company and Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market Listing Requirements,
approval be and is hereby given to the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into the
recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature as set out in Section 3.2
(A) of the circular to shareholders dated 5 July 2011 [hereinafter referred to as “the
Circular”] with the related parties mentioned therein be and is hereby renewed AND THAT
mandate be and is hereby given to the Company to enter into additional recurrent related
party transactions of a revenue or trading nature as set out in Section 3.2 (B) of the Circular
provided that:
(a)

the transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on normal commercial
terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than those generally
available to the public and are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders of
the Company; and

(b)

disclosure of the breakdown of the aggregate value of the recurrent related party
transactions conducted during the financial year will be made in the annual report
based on the following information:
(i)
(ii)

the type of recurrent transactions made; and
the names of the related parties involved in each type of the recurrent
transactions made and their relationship with the Company

AND THAT the authority granted by such renewed and additional mandate is subject to

annual renewal and shall continue to be in force until :
(i)

the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company following the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting at which the Proposed Renewal of
Shareholders’ Mandate for Existing and Additional Recurrent Related Party
Transactions will be tabled;

(ii)

the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required to be held pursuant to Section 143(1) of the Companies Act,
1965 (but shall not extend to such extensions as may be allowed pursuant to
Section 143(2) of the Companies Act, 1965); or

(iii)

revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in general meeting.

whichever is the earlier
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete and
do such acts and things to give full effect to the transactions contemplated and/or authorised
by this resolution.

8.

To transact any other business for which due notice has been given in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Companies Act, 1965.
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(Resolution 7)

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
CHAN KIN DAK @ TAN KIN DAK
TAN GHEE KIAT
T.V. SEKHAR A/L T.G. VENKATESAN
Company Secretaries
Tawau, Sabah.
Dated this 5 July 2011
NOTES:1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint proxy/proxies to attend and
vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b) of
the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

2.

To be valid the duly completed proxy form must be deposited at the Registered office of the Company at 318, Teck Guan
Regency, Jalan St. Patrick, Off Jalan Belunu, 91000 Tawau, Sabah, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the
Meeting.

3.

A member shall be entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote at the same meeting, provided that the
provisions of Section 149(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965 are complied with.

4.

Where a member appoints more that one proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of
his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

5.

If the appointor is a corporation, the proxy form must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of its
attorney.

6.

Explanatory Notes on Special Business
(i) Ordinary Resolution (Resolution 6)
The Ordinary Resolution proposed is in line with the Company’s expansion plan, which may involve the issuance of new
shares (other than bonus or rights issues). Under the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors would have to call for a general
meeting to approve the issuance of new shares even though the number of shares involved is less than 10% of the issued
capital of the Company for the time being. In order to avoid any delay and costs involved in convening a general meeting,
it is thus considered appropriate to seek shareholders’ approval for the Directors to issue shares (other than bonus or
rights issues) in the Company up to an aggregate amount not exceeding 10% of the issued capital of the Company for the
time being and also empower the Directors to obtain approval from the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad for the listing
of and quotation for the additional shares so issued. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will
expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. As at the date of this notice, no new shares of the Company
were issued pursuant to the mandate granted to the directors at the last Annual General Meeting held on 30 July 2010
and which will lapse at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and the directors of the Company do
not intend to raise funds from the general mandate sought last year.
(ii) Ordinary Resolution (Resolution 7)
The proposed resolution is in relation to Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Existing Recurrent Related Party
Transactions and Shareholders’ Mandate for Additional Recurrent Related Party Transactions, which are necessary for the
day-to-day operations of the Company. If approved by the shareholders, it will empower the Company to conduct
transactions of revenue or trading nature with the parties related to the Company. Please refer to the Circular to
Shareholders dated 5 July 2011 for more information.
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

No individual is seeking election as a director at the 17th Annual General Meeting.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the financial year which has been challenging, the Company has offered financial support to charitable
organizations, which care for the local communities and the society at large. The Company has made a payment
of RM5,000.00 to the Sabah Society for the Blind. The Company has made great effort to maintain employment
of its staff and workforce during the financial year.
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Datuk Hong Ngit Ming (Executive Chairman)
Hong Kim Fah (Deputy Executive Chairman and Managing Director)
Hong Yick Choon
Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei
Tham Vui Vun
Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee
Wong Peng Mun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Tham Vui Vun (Chairman)
Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee
Wong Peng Mun

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Chan Kin Dak @ Tan Kin Dak (MAICSA)
Tan Ghee Kiat (MICPA)
T.V. Sekhar A/L T.G. Venkatesan (MICPA)

REGISTERED OFFICE

318, Teck Guan Regency
Jalan St. Patrick, Off Jalan Belunu
91000 Tawau, Sabah
Tel: 6089-772275
Fax: 6089-761052
Email: majulahkoko@teckguan.com

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants

BANKERS

Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad
RHB Bank Berhad
HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad
Malayan Banking Berhad
Hong Leong Bank Berhad

SOLICITOR

Ting, Rosen & Co

REGISTRAR

Lawco Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd.
Lot 10, The Highway Centre, Jalan 51/205
46050 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan
Tel: 603-77843922
Fax: 603-77841988

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (Main Market)

STOCK SHORT NAME

Tecguan

STOCK CODE

7439

SECTOR

Industrial Products
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE GROUP

2011
RM’000
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenue
Pre-tax profit/(loss)
After-tax profit/(loss)

166,811
8,118
6,287

2010
RM’000
83,718
(3,799)
(4,482)

Financial Position
Working Capital
Net Assets
Total Tangible Assets
Paid-up Capital
Shareholders’ Funds

80,624
51,653
171,642
40,097
51,653

79,461
48,177
188,826
40,097
48,177

0
0

0
0

Dividend
Final (Paid)
Cover (Times)

Per Share (in Sen)
Net Assets
Profit/(loss) before tax*
Profit/(loss) after tax*
Dividend – Final (gross)

128.8
20.2
15.7
0

* Calculated based on 40,096,902 (2010: 40,096,902) ordinary shares in issue throughout the financial year.
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120.2
(9.5)
(11.2)
0

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
Company No. 307097-A

Tawau Cocoa Estate Sdn Bhd
(100 %)

Majulah Koko Tawau Sdn Bhd
(100 %)

Cacao Paramount Sdn Bhd
(100%)
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

DATUK HONG NGIT MING
Age : 58
Nationality : Malaysian (Chinese)
Qualification :
Attended the Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine, University of London in 1976. Obtained Bachelor
of Science (Honours) degree in Electrical Engineering and Associate of Electrical Engineering of City & Guilds Society.
He is a Chartered Engineer of the Institute of Electrical Engineers, United Kingdom.
Position : Executive Chairman
Working Experience
He was appointed the Deputy Executive Chairman of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd on 18 June 1996 and its Executive
Chairman on 20 April 1998. He joined Teck Guan Holdings Sdn Bhd’s Group of Companies on 1 October 1976 as a
management trainee, based in the Agriculture Division. He was appointed a director in 1979 and in 1983, he became
the Deputy Managing Director of the Teck Guan Holdings Group. He has in-depth exposure and practical experience
in many fields and businesses including agriculture, processing, manufacturing, mining, milling, property development and
international trade. Due to the foregoing and his strong scientific background, he has vast exposure of all aspects of the
cocoa business from cultivation to processing to research. In addition, he has also contributed a great deal in the cocoa
industry in Malaysia when he pioneered “ The Zero-Shade Cocoa Planting”, which revolutionised the entire cocoa
cultivation industry. He has in the year 2002, published the second edition of his works entitled “ Development History
of Zero-Shade Cocoa And Its Theories-Let there be Light”. Being deeply involved in all technical aspects of cocoa, he
is in constant contact with both local and international cocoa researchers. He also has in-depth exposure and practical
experience in oleochemical refinery of palm oil based fatty alcohol and fatty acid, oil palm cultivation and palm oil mills.
He currently sits on the Board of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd’s subsidiaries, and several other private companies within the
Teck Guan Holdings Group.
Occupation : Director
Date first appointed to the board : 18 June 1996
Details of any board committee appointment : NIL
Directorship of other public companies : NIL
Family relationship within any directors and/or major shareholder of the company :
Datuk Hong Ngit Ming is the brother of Mr. Hong Yick Choon and Madam Hong Kim Fah. Datuk Hong Ngit Ming is
deemed interested by virtue of his direct interest in shares in and being director of the holding company.
Conflict of interest with company : NIL
List of convictions for offences with the past 10 years other than traffic offence : NIL
Number of board meetings attended in the financial year : 2/4
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

MDM. HONG KIM FAH
Age : 61
Nationality : Malaysian (Chinese)
Qualification :
Attended the National Cheng Chi University, Taiwan in 1974. Obtained a degree in Business Administration Degree.
Position : Managing Director and Executive Deputy Chairman
Working Experience :
She was appointed the Managing Director of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd on 18 June 1996 and its Executive Deputy
Chairman on 20 April 1998. She was initially attached to the Teck Guan Holdings Sdn Bhd’s Group of Companies, with
the Personnel Department in August 1974, then its Purchasing Department and Properties Department before joining
Teck Guan Trading Sdn Bhd as Tawau Branch Manager. She has vast experience in management and business and has
successfully converted, time and again, loss businesses into profitable concerns, which maintain their profitability even
during recession times. Due to her wide business contacts, training and business acumen, she is adept at identifying
businesses and markets. During the past fifteen (15) years, she has been involved in the management of cocoa, oil palm
and rubber plantations, palm oil mills and the import and distribution of hardwares, building materials, fertilizers,
engineering goods and steel roll forming products. She currently sits on the Board of Teck Guan Perdana Berhad’s
subsidiaries, and several other private limited companies within the Teck Guan Holdings Group.
Occupation : Director
Date first appointed to the board : 18 June 1996
Details of any board committee appointment : NIL
Directorship of other public companies : NIL
Family relationship within any directors and/or major shareholder of the company :
Madam Hong Kim Fah is the sister of Datuk Hong Ngit Ming and Mr. Hong Yick Choon. Madam Hong Kim Fah is
deemed interested by virtue of her direct interest in shares in and being director of the holding company.
Conflict of interest with company : NIL
List of convictions for offences with the past 10 years other than traffic offence : NIL
Number of board meetings attended in the financial year : 2/4
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

MR. HONG YICK CHOON
Age : 56
Nationality : Malaysian (Chinese)
Qualification :
Attended the University of Northumbria, United Kingdom and obtained a degree in accountancy.
Position : Executive Director
Working Experience :
He was appointed to the Board of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd on 18 June 1996. He has more than 25 years of experience
in trading business particularly in building and construction materials, steel products and consumer goods. He became
the General Manager of Teck Guan Trading Sdn Bhd in 1987. During the past fifteen (15) years, he has been involved
in the import and distribution of hardwares, building materials, fertilizers, engineering goods, steel roll forming products,
property development and plantation and mill management. He joined Teck Guan Perdana Bhd as Executive Director
on 1 July 1996. He currently sits on the Board of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd’s subsidiaries and several other private limited
companies within the Teck Guan Holdings Group.
Occupation : Director
Date first appointed to the board : 18 June 1996
Details of any board committee appointment :
Risk Management Committee – Member
Remuneration Committee – Member
Directorship of other public companies : NIL
Family relationship within any directors and/or major shareholder of the company :
Mr. Hong Yick Choon is the brother of Datuk Hong Ngit Ming and Madam Hong Kim Fah. Mr. Hong Yick Choon is
deemed interested by virtue of his direct interest in shares in and being director of the holding company.
Conflict of interest with company : NIL
List of convictions for offences with the past 10 years other than traffic offence : NIL
Number of board meetings attended in the financial year : 2/4
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

MR. TANG AMIY @ TANG AH MEI
Age : 64
Nationality : Malaysian (Chinese)
Qualification :
Past member of the Institute of Management U.K
Position : Executive Director
Working Experience :
He was appointed to the Board of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd on 18 June 1996. He is the Group Corporate Planner of
the Teck Guan Holdings Sdn Bhd’s Group of Companies since 1980. Prior to 1980, he had worked in two international
accounting firms for more than five (5) years. He has more than 25 years experience in corporate planning and
restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, finance, fund investment, joint ventures, corporate R & D, financing, business
contracts and corporate advisory services. He is currently responsible for the Group’s corporate planning, corporate
research and development, fund investment and financing requirements. He joined Teck Guan Perdana Bhd as
Executive Director on 1 July 1996. He currently sits on the Board of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd’s subsidiaries and several
other private limited companies within the Teck Guan Holdings Group.
Occupation : Director
Date first appointed to the board : 18 June 1996
Details of any board committee appointment :
Risk Management Committee – Member
Directorship of other public companies : NIL
Family relationship within any directors and/or major shareholder of the company : NIL
Conflict of interest with company : NIL
List of convictions for offences with the past 10 years other than traffic offence : NIL
Number of board meetings attended in the financial year : 4/4
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

MR. THAM VUI VUN
Age : 54
Nationality : Malaysian (Chinese)
Qualification :
Fellow Member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountant, United Kingdom.
Chartered Accountant Malaysia (C.A.(M))
Position : Independent Non-Executive Director
Working Experience :
He was appointed as an Independent and Non-Executive Director of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd on 15 November 2001.
He is also a Chartered Accountant, Malaysia having more than twenty years working experience in both accounting and
auditing fields and currently heads his own practice as V.V. Tham & Co since 1998.
Occupation : Auditor
Date first appointed to the board : 15 November 2001
Details of any board committee appointment :
Audit Committee – Chairman
Remuneration Committee – Chairman
Nomination Committee – Chairman
Directorship of other public companies : NIL
Family relationship within any directors and/or major shareholder of the company : NIL
Conflict of interest with company : NIL
List of convictions for offences with the past 10 years other than traffic offence : NIL
Number of board meetings attended in the financial year : 3/4
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

MR. HO YUN KONG @ HO YUN HEE
Age : 59
Nationality : Malaysian (Chinese)
Qualification :
Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK (FCCA)
Chartered Accountant Malaysia (C.A.(M))
Fellow member of the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia (FCTIM)
Position : Independent Non-Executive Director
Working Experience :
He was appointed as an Independent and Non-Executive Director of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd on 18 November 2009.
He has more than 35 years of working experience in both accounting and auditing fields. Member of Malaysian Institute
of Accountants (MIA) since 1984. Presently, proprietor of Ho Yun Kong & Associates (Audit Firm No. AF 0870) based
in Tawau, Sabah.
Occupation : Auditor
Date first appointed to the board : 18 November 2009
Details of any board committee appointment :
Audit Committee – Member
Remuneration Committee – Member
Nomination Committee – Member
Directorship of other public companies : NIL
Family relationship within any directors and/or major shareholder of the company : NIL
Conflict of interest with company : NIL
List of convictions for offences with the past 10 years other than traffic offence : NIL
Number of board meetings attended in the financial year : 4/4

14

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

MR. WONG PENG MUN
Age : 51
Nationality : Malaysian (Chinese)
Qualification :
Bsc (Hons) in Physics, Diploma in management, Licenced Secretary (LS 003897)
Position : Independent Non-Executive Director
Working Experience :
He was appointed as an Independent and Non-Executive Director of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd on 5 December 2008.
He has more than 20 years of working experience in both secretarial and auditing fields. Worked as Audit Senior with
Ernst & Young secretarial firm since 1998 till present under Konsep Bisnes.
Occupation : Director
Date first appointed to the board : 5 December 2008
Details of any board committee appointment :
Audit Committee – Member
Remuneration Committee – Member
Nomination Committee – Member
Directorship of other public companies : NIL
Family relationship within any directors and/or major shareholder of the company : NIL
Conflict of interest with company : NIL
List of convictions for offences with the past 10 years other than traffic offence : NIL
Number of board meetings attended in the financial year : 4/4
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2011 are drawn up
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1965 and the applicable approved accounting standards in
Malaysia, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at the end of
accounting year and the results and cash flows for the year then ended. The Directors consider that, in preparing those
financial statements, the Group and Company have used appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently
and make judgement and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and the Company and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 1965 and applicable approved accounting standards in
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible to take such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the Group and the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Teck Guan Perdana Bhd, I am pleased to present to you the Annual Report and
Audited Financial Statements of the Group and Company for the financial year ended 31 January 2011.
Financial Performance
For the year ended 31 January 2011, Group revenue increased to RM166.8 million from RM83.7 million registered in
the previous financial year, a 99.3% growth primarily derived from the oil palm segment that registered a comparatively
higher selling price for products from kernel crushing operation and oil palm plantation in the current financial year.
The higher profit for the Group was achieved due to several favorable factors including better pricing, increased
production volume in both the kernel crushing plant and oil palm plantation, and more palms coming into maturity.
In the cocoa segment, the increase in volume and better pricing helped to raise the contribution from this segment as
compared to previous financial year.
Operations Review
(a)

Oil Palm Products:
As at the close of the financial year under review, all areas under oil palm of the Group, except for
approximately 10 hectares of new area planted during the year, attained maturity, with the oldest palms at age
16. Production volume for fresh fruit bunches is expected to increase further with more young palms attaining
their prime age.
In the kernel crushing plant operation, sourcing of raw materials remains a challenging task for the Group.
As a result of the favorable selling price that enhanced a better contribution margin, the Group’s oil palm
segment registered a record operating profit of RM8.7 million for the financial year under review.

(b)

Cocoa Products:
The division generated an operating profit of RM0.7 million for the year as compared to an operating loss of
RM6.2 million in the preceding year.
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dividend
The Board did not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31 January 2011.
Prospects
For the oil palm segment, with palm oil prices currently traded at reasonably remunerative level in tandem with
continuing strong demand especially from China and India, the management is positive of its sustainable global demand
and sustainable prices.
According to market view, cocoa products are forecasted to remain bearish with the outlook of possible declines in
powder and butter ratios simultaneously. The management will adopt a cautious view in the operation of this segment.
For the current financial year, the management remains cautiously optimistic in the operation of the Group.
Appreciation
On behalf of the Board, I would like to express our thanks and appreciation to our valued customers as well as our
business associates, suppliers and shareholders for their continued support. I also wish to record my sincere appreciation
to my fellow Board members, the management team and employees for their ongoing dedication and invaluable
contribution to the Group over the years.
DATUK HONG NGIT MING
Executive Chairman
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Directors are pleased to present the Audit Committee Report of the Company in respect of the financial year ended 31
January 2011.
(A)

COMPOSITION
The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
CHAIRMAN
Mr. Tham Vui Vun, MIA 3667

Independent Non-Executive Director

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Mr. Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee
Mr. Wong Peng Mun
(B)

Independent Non-Executive Director
(appointed on 18.11.2009)
Independent Non-Executive Director

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONSTITUTION
1. The Committee was established by the Board on 15 June 1996.
MEMBERSHIP
2. The Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the directors of the Company and shall consist of
not less than three members. All members of the Committee must be non-executive directors, with a majority
being independent directors. At least one member of the Audit Committee shall be a member of the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants or one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of the 1st Schedule of the
Accountants Act 1967 or must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the 1st Schedule of the
Accountants Act 1967.
3.

The Chairman of the Committee shall be an independent non-executive director appointed by the Board and the
Secretary of the Committee shall be the Company Secretary.

4.

If a member of the Committee resigns, dies, or for any reason ceases to be a member which results in the number
of members being reduced to below 3, the Board of Directors shall, within 3 months of that event, appoint such
number of new members as may be required to make up the minimum number of 3 members.

5.

The term of office and performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members shall be reviewed by the
Board at least once every 3 years to determine whether the Audit Committee and each of its members have carried
out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.

AUTHORITY
6. In accordance with procedures to be determined by the Board and at the cost of the Company, the Audit
Committee shall
(a) have authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;
(b) have the resources which are required to perform its duties;
(c) have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company;
(d) have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal audit
function or activity;
(e) be able to obtain independent professional or other advice; and
(f) be able to convene meetings with external auditors and internal auditors , excluding the attendance of the
executive board members, other directors and employees of the Group whenever deemed necessary.
Notwithstanding the above, the Committee does not have executive powers and shall report to the Board on
matters considered and its recommendations thereon, pertaining to the Company and the Group.
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TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

REPORTING OF BREACHES TO THE BURSA MALAYSIA SECURITIES BERHAD
7. Where the Audit Committee is of the view that a matter reported by it to the Board has not been satisfactorily resolved
resulting in a breach of the Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements, the Audit Committee must promptly report such matter
to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
FUNCTIONS
8. The Audit Committee shall, amongst others, discharge the following functions:(1) review the following and report the same to the Board:(a) with the internal and the external auditors, the audit plan;
(b) with the external auditors, their evaluation of the system of internal controls;
(c) with the external auditors, their audit report and management letters, the major findings and management’s
responses;
(d) the assistance given by the employees of the Company to the external auditors;
(e) with regards to the internal audit function:(i) review the adequacy of the scope, functions and competency and resources of the internal audit function,
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
(ii) review the internal audit programme and results of the internal audit processes or investigation
undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of the internal audit
function;
(iii) review any appraisal or assessment of the performance or members of the internal audit function;
(iv) approve any appointment or termination of senior staff members of the internal audit function;
(v) be informed of any resignations of internal audit staff members and provide the resigning staff an
opportunity to submit his reasons for resigning;
(f)

the quarterly results and year end financial statements, prior to the approval by the Board, focusing particularly
on:(i) changes in or implementation of major accounting policy changes;
(ii) significant and unusual events; and
(iii) compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements;
(iv) significant adjustments arising from the audit;
(v) the going concern assumption.

(g)

any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company or Group
including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity;
(h) any letter of resignation from the external auditors of the Company; and
(i) whether there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the Company’s external auditor is not suitable
for re-appointment; and
(2) recommend the nomination of a person or persons as external auditors.
ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
9. The quorum for meetings of the Audit Committee shall be two and the majority of members present must be Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Any decision shall be by a simple majority. The Chairman of the Committee shall report on each
meeting to the Board.
10. Other Board members and employees shall attend Audit Committee meetings only at the invitation of the Committee.
However, twice a year, the Committee shall meet with the external auditors without the presence of any other directors
and employees of the Company.
PROCEEDINGS AT MEETINGS
11. If at any meeting the Chairman is not present within 10 minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or is
unwilling to act, the Members present may choose one of their numbers who is an Independent Non-Executive Director
to be Chairman of the meeting.
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PROCEEDINGS AT MEETINGS
12. Save as is otherwise provided, the Committee shall meet, adjourn or otherwise regulate its meetings and proceedings as
it thinks fit. Questions arising at any meeting shall be agreed to by all the members present at the meeting, each member
having one (1) vote. In the event of there being no unanimous decision, the matter concerned shall be referred to the
Board of Directors.
13. A resolution signed by all members of the Audit Committee for the time being present in Malaysia shall be as effective as
a resolution passed at a meeting of the Committee duly convened and held. Any such resolution may consist of several
documents in the same form and each signed by one or more members of the Audit Committee.
FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS
14. Meetings shall be held not less than twice a year although additional meetings may be convened at any time the discretion
of the Chairman of the Committee. The external auditors and internal auditors may request for a meeting if they consider
that it is necessary.
REPORTING PROCEDURES
15. The Secretary of the Committee shall give notice of the meeting including the agenda together with all relevant documents
to all members of the Committee prior to the meeting. Minutes of each meeting shall be kept and distributed to each
member of the Committee and of the Board. Any persons who may be required to attend shall also be notified by the
Secretary accordingly.
(C)

ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The activities of the Audit Committee in the discharge of its functions and duties in respect of the financial year under review
included:
(1) review of the quarterly reports prior to the submission to the Board for approval;
(2) review the internal audit report with the internal auditors at its meetings;
(3) review the related party transactions;
(4) review the Group’s annual financial statements prior to the submission to the Board for approval;
(5) review the outstanding related party transactions receivables
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The internal audit department assists the Audit Committee by adopting a risk-based internal audit approach. It focuses its work
with systematic review so as to provide assurance on the system of internal controls to ensure that key processes of operating
units are being operated satisfactorily and effectively.
During the financial year under review, the internal audit in-house department has conducted audit work on the inter-company
sale of crude palm kernel oil to a related party and comparison of actual recurrent related party transactions against those
transactions which are comprised in the Mandate approved by shareholders of the Group to ensure established procedures are
strictly followed and adhered to.

(D)

AUDIT COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Position

23
Mar

25
June

23
Sept

27
Dec

Total

Independent Non-Executive
Director & Chairman of
Audit Committee

1

1

1

-

3

Wong Peng Mun

Independent Non-Executive
Director

1

1

1

1

4

Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee

Independent Non-Executive
Director

1

1

1

1

4

Name of Directors

Tham Vui Vun
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The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Teck Guan Perdana Berhad (“Teck Guan” or “the Company”) is pleased to
report the following statement which explains the extent of compliance of the principles and best practices in corporate
governance as recommended by the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”) as required under the
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements”) throughout the
financial year ended 31 January 2011.
Composition of the Board
The Board has the overall responsibility for the performance of the Group by maintaining full and effective control. The
Board comprises a good mix of professionals of different backgrounds bringing with them a wide range of experience
and expertise in various diverse areas such as operations, corporate affairs, finance, legal and risk management to the
Group business operations. The Board has seven (7) members comprising the Executive Chairman, a Managing
Director, two (2) Executive Directors and three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Executive directors are primarily responsible for the implementation of the Board’s policies and decisions
overseeing the Group’s operations and developing the Group’s business strategies. Independent directors are
independent of management and have no relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgment. The composition reflects more than one-third of its members who are independent.
Under the Articles of Association, at least one third of the Directors shall retire and be eligible for re-election by
rotation at each Annual General Meeting. All directors are to retire from office at least once in three years but shall be
eligible for re-election.
Board Meetings
The Board meets at least four times in a financial year. Prior to each Board meeting, all directors are provided with the
agenda in sufficient time for their review and action. However, materials on certain items which are sensitive in nature
are distributed only during the respective meetings. Minutes of the Board meetings are maintained by the Joint
Company Secretaries.
The Board is assisted by the Joint Company Secretaries who ensure that the Board is furnished with timely and updated
information issued by the various regulatory authorities. Directors can seek independent professional advice, where
necessary in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expense. Directors also have direct access to the advice and
the services of the joint Company Secretaries as well as to all information within the Group in discharging their duties.
The Board scrutinizes the management’s performance and quality, reliability and transparency of information provided
by management to facilitate sound decision-making.
The Board met four (4) times during the financial year. Details of each Director’s attendance at Board meetings are
found in the Directors’ profile.
Directors’ Training
All directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Program (MAP) organised by the Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. During the financial year, the Directors attended courses, seminars on oleochemical, success training, tax
planning and corporate tax issues, Malaysian financial reporting standards, budget seminar, implementing quality control
and forensic accounting and fraud investigations.
Mr. Hong Yick Choon and Mr. Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei, both executive directors have not attended any training
courses due to work commitments during the financial year and will make great efforts to attend seminars, conferences
to update their knowledge in their areas of expertise and to keep abreast with the development in the industry and the
regulations of the relevant authorities.
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To assist the Board, the following committees have been established:
1.

Audit Committee – Further details are presented in the Audit Committee Report.

2.

Nomination Committee
The Committee’s primary responsibility is making formal and transparent recommendations for any
appointments to the Board including those of subsidiary companies. The Nomination Committee met once
during the financial year. In making these recommendations, the Committee will consider the required mix of
skills and experience, which the Directors should bring to the Board. Recommendations by the Nomination
Committee are subject to the approval of the Board of Directors.
Members of the Nomination Committee as at 31 January 2011 are as follows:Tham Vui Vun (Chairman)
Wong Peng Mun (Member)
Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee (Member)

3.

Remuneration Committee
The primary responsibilities of the Committee are to develop for the Board, the Groups’ remuneration policy
and benefits for both Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Individual Directors play no part in deciding
their own remunerations. There were no meetings held during the financial year. Fees payable to
Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board with the approval from shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting.
Members of the Remuneration Committee as at 31 January 2011 are as follows:Tham Vui Vun (Chairman)
Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee (Member)
Wong Peng Mun (Member)
Hong Yick Choon (Member)
Directors’ Remuneration
Presently, the fees of Directors, including Non-Executive Directors, are endorsed by the Board for approval
by the shareholders of the company at the AGM. Details of Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
January 2011 are found on page 79 of this Annual Report.
During the financial year ended 31 January 2011, the Directors, whose remunerations fall within the following
bands, are as follows:
Director Remuneration

Executive Director(s)

Non-Executive Director(s)

Below RM50,000

-

3

RM50,001 to RM100,000

1

-

RM100,001 to RM150,000

3

-
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Shareholders and Investors
Annual General meeting (AGM) is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. At the AGM, shareholders have
direct access to the Board and are encouraged to ask questions during the proceedings. The Board endeavors to ensure
that all Board members, the external auditor and financial adviser are also present at the Company’s AGMs.
Extraordinary General Meetings ("EGMs") are held as and when required. In addition, the Company makes a timely
release of the Group’s quarterly results within two months from the close of a particular quarter, as stipulated by the
Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. Members of the public can obtain the full financial results and
the Company’s announcements from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s website, the company’s website
www.teckguan.com/tgp or the Company’s corporate office.
Financial Reporting
In presenting the annual financial statements and quarterly announcements to shareholders, the Directors aim to
present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects. These financial statements
are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and applicable Financial Reporting
Standards in Malaysia.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in ensuring accuracy and adequacy of information by reviewing and
recommending for to the Board for approval.
Relationship with the External Auditors
The Company has established a transparent arrangement with the auditors in seeking their professional advice thereby
ensuring compliance with the accounting standards and other related regulatory requirements.
Statement on Internal Control
(Pursuant to the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements)
The Board is pleased to provide the following Statement on Internal Control which outlines the nature and state of
internal control of the Group during the financial year under review.
The Board recognises its full responsibilities for the Group’s system of internal control and the need to review its
adequacy and integrity regularly in order to safeguard the Group’s assets and therefore shareholders’ investments in the
Group. It also recognises the importance of a structured risk management and a risk-based internal audit to establish
and maintain a sound system of internal control. This process has been in place throughout the year and is continually
reviewed by the Audit Committee. Internal audits were carried out by the Internal Audit department during the
financial year. Accordingly, the findings of the internal audits, including the recommendations were presented directly to
the Audit Committee. However, this system only provides a reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
errors, fraud or loss.
During the financial year, the Board has reviewed the Group’s system of internal control against the requirements
outlined in the Statement on Internal Control: Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies (the Guidance)
issued by The Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia and adopted by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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Some key aspects of the Group’s system of internal control are as follows:-

The Board and the management ensure the overall effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through establishing, directing and supervising the operation of a risk management framework
that adequately manages the various risks faced by the Group. In any major proposed transactions or changes
in activities which carry different risks, it assesses significant risks and introduces appropriate risk response
strategies and controls to manage these risks to a level acceptable to the Board.
Regular meetings are held to assess performance and controls on all areas of operations.
Executive directors and senior management make regular visits to the various operating units of the Group
to enhance controls.
Clear lines of responsibilities and appropriate authority levels are in place for the Management and operating
units including matters requiring Board’s approval.
Control on quality of the manufacturing operations is implemented in accordance with the certified Quality
System such as Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point (HACCP).
Regular and comprehensive information provided to the Management and the Board of Directors,
encompassing financial and operational performance for monitoring and decision making.
Audit Committee comprises of all non-executive directors, majority of whom are independent who hold
regular meetings throughout the financial year. The current composition of members, with at least one who
is member of an accounting association or body, brings with them a wide variety of experience from different
fields and background. Members have full access to both the internal and external auditors during the financial
year. They also meet with the external auditors at least twice a year without the presence of any other
directors and employees of the Company.
Audit Committee members are briefed and updated on the matters of corporate governance practice, legal
and regulatory matters. Audit committee reviews internal control issues identified by the internal audit
function.

The Board is pleased to report that there were no significant internal control weaknesses noted during the period
under review and to the date of approval of this Annual Report. The Board is of the opinion that the existing system
of internal controls is adequate.
This statement has been reviewed by the external auditors in compliance with Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements.
This statement is issued in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 23 May 2011.
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Disclosure Requirements Pursuant to the Bursa Malaysia Listing Requirements.
Material Contracts
The Company and its subsidiaries do not have any material contracts involving the interests of its Directors and major
shareholders. There were no contracts relating to loans entered by the Company and its subsidiary involving the
directors and major shareholders’ interests.
Share Buyback
The Company does not have a share buy-back program in place.
Options, or Convertible Securities
No options, or convertible securities in the Company were issued or exercised during the financial year. The Company
does not have these schemes in place during the financial year.
Global Depository Receipt (GDR) Program
The Company does not have a depository receipt programme in place.
Imposition of Sanctions / Penalties
There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, directors or management by
the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.
Non-Audit Fees
There was no amount paid or is payable to the external auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young, for non-audit related works.
Profit Estimate, Forecast and Projections
The Company did not release any profit estimate, forecast or projections for the financial year.
Variation in Results
There is no variance of 10% or more between the audited results for the financial year and the unaudited results
previously announced.
Profit Guarantee
There were no profit guarantee subsisting during the financial year.
Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue Nature
Recurrent related party transactions of a revenue nature are disclosed in Note 27 of the financial statements. The
Company is seeking shareholders’ ratification and shareholders’ mandate as specified in Section 3.2 of the Circular to
Shareholders dated 5 July 2011 in its Annual General Meeting to be held on 29 July 2011.
Revaluation Policy on Landed Properties
The Group does not adopt a policy on regular revaluation on its landed properties.
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As at 27 May 2011

Analysis of Shareholdings
Size of Holdings

No. of Holders

No. of Shares

%

1 -

99

0

0.00

0

0.00

100 -

1,000

122

10.42

106,100

0.26

1,001 -

10,000

910

77.78

3,069,000

7.65

10,001 -

100,000

121

10.34

3,407,600

8.50

100,001 -

2,004,844*

16

1.37

9,537,220

23.79

1

0.09

23,976,982

59.80

1,170

100.00

40,096,902

100.00

2,004,845 and above**
TOTAL

REMARKS :

%

* - Less than 5% of issued shares
** - 5% and above of issued shares
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List of top 30 shareholders
No.

Name

No. of
Shares held

% of
Shareholdings

1.

HTG Holdings Sdn Bhd

23,976,982

59.80

1,472,000

3.67

2.

CIMSEC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Bank of Singapore Limited for Laller Co Ltd

3.

Ong Har Hong

1,368,386

3.41

4.

Chew Boon Seng

1,243,102

3.10

5.

Wong Hok Yim

1,200,000

2.99

6.

Tan Han Chuan

942,332

2.35

7.

Poo Choo @ Ong Poo Choi

725,900

1.81

8.

Tan Ching Ching

676,000

1.69

9.

Low Cheng Peng

451,000

1.12

10.

Teck Guan Development (Sabah) Sdn Bhd

299,200

0.75

CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

230,000

0.57

11.

Bank of Singapore Limited For Chin Fui Lan
12.

Chong Thin Tuck

220,000

0.55

13.

Tan Kim Huat & Sons Motor Sdn Berhad

200,000

0.50

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

155,000

0.39

14.

Pledged Securities Account for Ting Tie Hau
15.

Jimmy Pang Kia Lock

126,300

0.31

16.

HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd

120,000

0.30

Hong Kim Eng

108,000

0.27

Mayban Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

100,000

0.25

HSBC Trustee (S) Ltd for the Sipadan Trust
17.
18.

Pledged Securities Account for Pong Kim Wai
19.

Tan Kim Huat & Sons Holdings Sdn Bhd

20.

Loong Chee Meng

100,000

0.25

94,000

0.23

21.

Lembaga Tabung Amanah Warisan Negeri Terengganu

80,000

0.20

22.

Ang Theng Leng

76,000

0.19

23.

Yong Ai Ting

70,000

0.17

24.

Chong Nyet Wui

68,800

0.17

25.

Yu Chiew Yee

68,000

0.17

26.

Koh Eng Eng

60,000

0.15

27.

Low Swee Yoke

59,800

0.15

28.

Tang Tiong Sing

56,000

0.14

29.

Ng Ah Ngah

53,000

0.13

30.

Teh Teaw Kee

52,000

0.13

34,451,802

85.91
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Substantial Shareholders
Name

No. of Shares Held

HTG Holdings Sdn Bhd

% of Shareholdings

23,976,982

59.80

List of Directors’ Shareholdings of the holding company

No.

Name

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Datuk Hong Ngit Ming
Hong Kim Fah
Hong Yick Choon
Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei
Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee
Tham Vui Vun
Wong Peng Mun

Direct Total
Shareholdings

%

Indirect Total
Shareholdings

%

-

-

24,206,982*
24,044,982*
24,052,982*
-

60.37
59.97
59.98
-

*(Deemed interest by virtue of their direct interest in shares and being Directors of the holding company and indirect interest
in shares held by their spouse)

List of Directors’ Shareholdings in its related company (HTG Holdings Sdn Bhd)

No.

Name

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Datuk Hong Ngit Ming
Hong Kim Fah
Hong Yick Choon
Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei
Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee
Tham Vui Vun
Wong Peng Mun

Direct No. of
10% Cumulative
Preference shares
of RM1 each

Indirect No. of
10% Cumulative
Preference shares
of RM1 each

100,000
100,000
100,000
-

-

The directors of the Company do not hold any ordinary shares in HTG Holdings Sdn Bhd.
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As at 31 January 2011

Tenure

Land
Area/
Build up
Area sq.m

1. CL 105312703 Quion Hill
Apas Road, Tawau, Sabah.

Leasehold
(expiring on 28.12.2058)

4,028,645 /
6,745

2. CL 105334996 Brantian,
Merotai Rd, Tawau, Sabah.

Leasehold
(expiring on 31.12.2072)

3. CL 105339099 Brantian,
Merotai Rd, Tawau, Sabah.

Item
No

Location

Existing
use/
Description

Net Book
Age of
Value As At
31 Jan 2011 Building

Date of
Revaluation

Cocoa and Oil Palm
estate and cocoa
fermentation factory

13,915,609

16

Land-01/09/2006
Building-05/95

1,211,629

Oil palm estate

4,508,872

-

30/09/2006

Leasehold
(expiring on 31.12.2073)

400,234

Oil palm estate

1,531,185

-

30/09/2006

4. CL 105347493 Quion Hill
Apas Road, Tawau, Sabah.

Leasehold
(expiring on 31.12.2069)

81,261

Cocoa and oil palm
estate

248,167

-

30/09/2006

5. CL 105354050 Balung
Apas Road, Tawau, Sabah.

Leasehold
(expiring on 31.12.2073)

653,567

Oil palm estate

2,332,755

-

30/09/2006

6. CL 105436299 Quion Hill
Apas Road, Tawau, Sabah.

Leasehold
(expiring on 31.12.2079)

16,147

Cocoa and oil palm
estate

56,034

-

30/09/2006

7. CL 115316848 Tingkayu,
Lahad Datu/Tawau, Sabah.

Leasehold
(expiring on 31.12.2071)

1,216,485 /
233

Oil Palm estate and
cocoa fermentation
factory

3,360,796

20

Land-30/09/2006
Building-01/1991

8.

CL 105368607 Sebatik
Island Tawau, Sabah

Leasehold
(expiring on 31.12.2078)

513,946

Oil palm estate

462,282

-

30/09/2006

9.

CL 105339071 Mile 2 1/2
Tanjung Batu Laut
Tawau, Sabah

Leasehold
(expiring on 08.10.2902)

25,617 /
5,028

Cocoa processing
factory and office

6,859,755

22

30/09/2006

10. CL 105339053 Mile 2 1/2
Tanjung Batu Laut
Tawau, Sabah

Leasehold
(expiring on 31.12.2902)

19,627 /
2,754

Cocoa processing
factory and office

5,256,457

36

30/09/2006
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors hereby present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 January 2011.
Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of administrative services to the
subsidiaries.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are the manufacturing and sale of cocoa butter, cocoa powder and other
cocoa products, trading of cocoa beans, crude palm kernel oil and operation of kernel crushing plant, and the operation
of oil palm and cocoa plantations.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.
Results

Profit/(loss) net of tax
Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Minority interests

Group
RM

Company
RM

6,287,086
=======

(5,239,384)
=======

6,287,086
-

(5,239,384)
--

6,287,086
=======

(5,239,384)
=======

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in
the financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year
were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
Dividends
There were no dividends paid, declared or recommended since the end of the previous financial year.
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Directors
The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this report
are:
Datuk Hong Ngit Ming – Executive Chairman
Hong Kim Fah – Deputy Executive Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Yick Choon
Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei
Tham Vui Vun
Wong Peng Mun
Ho Yun Kong @ Ho Yun Hee
Directors’ Benefits
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which
the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other
than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors or the
fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company as shown in Note 10 to the financial statements) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which the director is a
member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in Note 27 to
the financial statements.
Directors’ Interest
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the financial year
in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year were as follows:

Number of Ordinary
1.2.2010
Acquired

Shares of RM1 each
Sold
31.1.2011

The Company
Indirect Interest :
Datuk Hong Ngit Ming

24,206,982

-

-

24,206,982

Hong Yick Choon

24,052,982

-

-

24,052,982

Hong Kim Fah

24,044,982

-

-

24,044,982
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Directors’ Interest (continued)
Number of 10%
Cumulative Preference Shares of RM1 each
1.2.2010
Acquired
Sold
31.1.2011
Holding company
- HTG Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
Direct Interest :
Datuk Hong Ngit Ming

100,000

-

-

100,000

Hong Yick Choon

100,000

-

-

100,000

Hong Kim Fah

100,000

-

-

100,000

None of the other directors in office at the end of the financial year had any interest in shares in the Company or its
related corporations during the financial year.
Other Statutory Information
(a) Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the
Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:
(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of
provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts and that no
provision for doubtful debts was necessary; and

(ii)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting
records in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be
expected so to realise.

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:
(i)

it necessary to write off any bad debts or to make any provision for doubtful debts in respect of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company; and

(ii)

the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading.

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render
adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading
or inappropriate.
(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report
or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial
statements misleading.
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Other Statutory Information (continued)
(e) As at the date of this report, there does not exist:

(f)

(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year
which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

In the opinion of the directors:
(i)

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the
Company to meet their obligations when they fall due; and

(ii)

no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of
the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations
of the Group or of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

Auditors
The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 23 May 2011.

Hong Kim Fah

Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei
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Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965
We, Hong Kim Fah and Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei, being two of the directors of Teck Guan Perdana Berhad, do
hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 39 to 116 are
drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 January 2011 and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
The information set out in Note 33 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Guidance
on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 23 May 2011.

Hong Kim Fah

Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei

STATUTORY DECLARATION

Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965
I, Wong Teck Fun, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Teck Guan Perdana Berhad,
do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 39 to 117 are in my
opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly
declared by the abovenamed
Wong Teck Fun at Tawau
in the State of Sabah
on 23 May 2011

Wong Teck Fun

Before me,
Voo Tsun Ping
S095
Commissioner for oaths
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To the members of Teck Guan Perdana Berhad
Report on the financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of Teck Guan Perdana Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial
position as at 31 January 2011 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 39 to 116.
Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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To the members of Teck Guan Perdana Berhad (continued)
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 January 2011 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:
(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company
and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial
statements of the Company are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required
by us for those purposes.
(c) The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and
did not include any comment required to be made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
Other matters
The supplementary information set out in Note 33 on page 117 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance
with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of
Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary
information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad.
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content
of this report.

Ernst & Young
AF: 0039
Chartered Accountants

Yong Voon Kar
1769/04/12(J/PH)
Chartered Accountant

Kota Kinabalu, Malaysia
23 May 2011
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For the financial year ended 31 January 2011

Group
2011
RM

Note

Revenue
Cost of sales

Company
2010
RM

166,810,851
(143,393,355)

83,717,722
(79,576,470)

23,417,496

6

Other items of expense
Marketing and distribution
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs
Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax expense

2010
RM

840,000
(1,391,756)

840,000
(1,273,030)

4,141,252

(551,756)

(433,030)

6,717,513

6,353,685

778,917

752,808

7

(51,125)
(15,179,820)
(172,253)
(6,614,278)

(107,432)
(4,898,356)
(3,370,343)
(5,917,366)

(168,083)
(5,269,341)
(4,624)

(162,542)
(2,230,081)
(16,400)

8
11

8,117,533
(1,830,447)

(3,798,560)
(682,940)

(5,214,887)
(24,497)

(2,089,245)
(53,709)

6,287,086

(4,481,500)

(5,239,384)

(2,142,954)

4
5

Gross profit/(loss)
Other items of income
Other income

2011
RM

Profit/(loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Asset revaluation reserve realised
upon depreciation charged

-

-

-

-

142,307

142,307

-

-

Other comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax

142,307

142,307

-

-

Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

6,429,393
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For the financial year ended 31 January 2011

Group
Note

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Minority interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Minority interests

Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to
owners of the parent
(sen per share):
Basic
Diluted

12
12

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

6,287,086
-

(4,481,500)
-

(5,239,384)
-

(2,142,954)
-

6,287,086

(4,481,500)

(5,239,384)

(2,142,954)

6,429,393
-

(4,339,193)
-

(5,239,384)
-

(2,142,954)
-

6,429,393

(4,339,193)

(5,239,384)

(2,142,954)

15.68
15.68

(11.18)
(11.18)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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As At 31 January 2011

Group

Note
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Biological assets
Intangible asset
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

13
14
15
17

19
18
20

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Income tax payable
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables

21
22

Net current assets
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2011
RM

As at
31.1.2010
RM

As at
1.2.2009
(restated)
RM

43,990,887
13,348,245
2,623,596
8,399

43,158,163
14,055,976
2,623,596
8,363

44,716,112
13,855,091
2,623,596
8,258

59,971,127

56,846,098

61,203,057

29,423,936
73,426,481
11,452,088

44,661,654
82,922,693
704,599
3,322,437

29,017,549
56,543,618
1,057,904
850,897

114,302,505

131,611,383

87,469,968

174,273,632
========

191,457,481
========

148,673,025
========

505,916
25,213,330
7,958,943

11,096,210
41,054,486

10,796,405
9,133,996

33,678,189

52,150,696

19,930,401

80,624,316

79,460,687

67,539,567
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As At 31 January 2011

Group

Note
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Other payable

21
17
22

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
Share capital
Share premium
Asset revaluation reserve
Accumulated losses

23
24

Total equity
Total equity and liabilities
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2011
RM

As at
31.1.2010
RM

As at
1.2.2009
(restated)
RM

4,030,000
6,338,070
78,574,063

5,754,790
6,293,031
79,082,425

6,152,277
69,932,308

88,942,133

91,130,246

76,084,585

122,620,322

143,280,942

96,014,986

51,653,310

48,176,539

52,658,039

40,096,902
7,000
17,397,161
(5,847,753)

40,096,902
7,000
17,539,468
(9,466,831)

40,096,902
7,000
17,681,775
(5,127,638)

51,653,310

48,176,539

52,658,039

174,273,632

191,457,481

148,673,025
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As At 31 January 2011

Company

Note

2011
RM

As at
31.1.2010
RM

As at
1.2.2009
(restated)
RM

8
30,064,430
8,399
-

154
35,333,771
8,363
10,283,735

572
37,563,852
8,258
9,965,539

30,072,837

45,626,023

47,538,221

13,253,896
187,322
2,194

3,533,213
158,409
25,795

3,513,561
313,968
3,141

13,443,412

3,717,417

3,830,670

43,516,249

49,343,440

51,368,891

9,330
42,206

639,343

13,405
508,435

51,536

639,343

521,840

13,391,876

3,078,074

3,308,830

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets
Other receivable

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

13
16
17
18

18
20

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables

21
22

Total liabilities
Net current assets
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As At 31 January 2011

Company

2011
RM

As at
31.1.2010
RM

As at
1.2.2009
(restated)
RM

43,464,713

48,704,097

50,847,051

40,096,902
7,000
3,360,811

40,096,902
7,000
8,600,195

40,096,902
7,000
10,743,149

Total equity

43,464,713

48,704,097

50,847,051

Total equity and liabilities

43,516,249

49,343,440

51,368,891

Note

Net assets
Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings

23
25

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Attributable to owners of the parent
Non-distributable

Note

Non-Distributable

Equity
total
RM

Equity
attributable to
owners of the
parent, total
RM

Share
capital
RM

48,176,539
(2,810,315)

48,176,539
(2,810,315)

40,096,902
-

7,000
-

(9,466,831)
(2,810,315)

17,539,468
-

45,366,224

45,366,224

40,096,902

7,000

(12,277,146)

17,539,468

6,287,086

6,287,086

-

-

51,653,310

51,653,310

40,096,902

7,000

Share Accumulated
premium
losses
RM
RM

Asset
revalution
reserve
RM

Group
Opening balance at
1 February 2010
Effects of adopting FRS 139

Total comprehensive income
Closing balance at
31 January 2011
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For the financial year ended 31 January 2011

Attributable to owners of the parent
Non-distributable

Note

Equity
attributable to
Equity owners of the
total
parent, total
RM
RM

Share
capital
RM

Non-Distributable

Share Accumulated
premium
losses
RM
RM

Asset
revalution
reserve
RM

Group
Opening balance at
1 February 2009
Total comprehensive income

52,658,039
(4,481,500)

52,658,039
(4,481,500)

40,096,902
-

7,000
-

(5,127,638)
(4,339,193)

17,681,775
(142,307)

Closing balance at
31 January 2010

48,176,539

48,176,539

40,096,902

7,000

(9,466,831)

17,539,468
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For the financial year ended 31 January 2011

Non-Distributable

Distributable

Equity
total
RM

Share
capital
RM

Share
premium
RM

Retained
earnings
RM

Opening balance at 1 February 2010

48,704,097

40,096,902

7,000

8,600,195

Total comprehensive income

(5,239,384)

-

-

Closing balance at 31 January 2011

43,464,713

40,096,902

7,000

3,360,811

Opening balance at 1 February 2009

50,847,051

40,096,902

7,000

10,743,149

Total comprehensive income

(2,142,954)

-

-

Closing balance at 31 January 2010

48,704,097

40,096,902

7,000

Company

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(5,239,384)

(2,142,954)
8,600,195
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For the year ended 31 January 2011

Group
2011
RM

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

Operating activities
8,117,533

Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of biological assets
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary
Plant and equipment written off
Interest expense
Interest income
Net fair value adjustments on derivatives
Total adjustments

Operating cash flows before changes in
working capital

(3,798,560)

(5,214,887)

707,731
1
(35,251)

538,503
(23,861)

(34,999)

1,533,069
6,614,278
(3,634,810)
(1,602,144)

3,115,386
399
5,917,366
(4,381,024)
-

145
5,269,341
4,624
(743,876)
-

418
2,230,081
16,400
(752,797)
-

3,582,873

5,166,769

4,495,235

1,494,102

11,700,406

1,368,209

15,237,718

(15,644,105)

-

9,074,035

(26,379,075)

563,052

(337,848)

(34,389,899)

41,070,607

(597,137)

130,908

(719,652)

(2,089,245)

-

(595,143)

Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade
and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade
and other payables

-

(10,078,146)

(952,573)

(34,085)

(206,940)

Cash flows generated from/(used in) operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Income tax refunded
Interest received

1,622,260
(6,614,278)
(834,299)
259,370
3,634,810

415,636
(5,920,860)
(979,008)
790,022
4,381,024

(753,737)
(4,624)
(120,851)
67,405
743,876

(802,083)
(16,400)
(140,524)
242,269
752,797

Net cash flow (used in)/generated from
operating activities

(1,932,137)

(1,313,186)

(67,931)

36,059

Total changes in working capital
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For the year ended 31 January 2011

Group

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

35,800

124,927

35,000

-

Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of plant
and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)
Oil palm planting expenditure

(2,366,342)
-

(1,658,902)
(735,894)

-

-

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
investing activities

(2,330,542)

(2,269,869)

35,000

-

64,367,000
(50,424,000)
(1,560,000)
-

33,643,000
(36,725,000)
7,800,000
(650,000)
2,000,000

-

-

12,383,000

6,068,000

-

-

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

8,120,321

2,484,945

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

3,322,437

837,492

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year (Note 20)

11,442,758

3,322,437

Financing activities
Proceeds from bankers’ acceptances
Repayment of bankers’ acceptances
Drawdown of term loan
Repayment of term loan
Drawdown of revolving credits
Net cash flow generated from financing
activities

(32,931)

36,059

25,795

(10,264)

(7,136)

25,795

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 January 2011
1.

Corporate information
The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is situated at No. 318, Teck Guan
Regency, Jalan St. Patrick, Off Jalan Belunu, 91000 Tawau, Sabah.
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the provision of administrative services to the
subsidiaries. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are the manufacturing and sale of cocoa butter, cocoa powder and
other cocoa products, trading of cocoa beans, crude palm kernel oil and operation of kernel crushing plant, and the
operation of oil palm and cocoa plantations. There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities
during the financial year.
The immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company is HTG Holdings Sdn. Bhd., a private limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Group and Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS) and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. At the beginning of the current financial year, the Group
and the Company adopted new and revised FRS which are mandatory for financial periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010 as described fully in Note 2.2.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except as disclosed in accounting policies
below.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM).
2.2 Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:
On 1 February 2010, the Group and the Company adopted the following new and amended FRS and IC
Interpretations mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
FRS 8 Operating Segments
FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)
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31 January 2011
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
FRS 123 Borrowing Costs
FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Amendments to FRS 1 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards and FRS 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements: Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
Amendments to FRS 2 Share-based Payment – Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
Amendments to FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation
Amendments to FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, FRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures and IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Improvements to FRS issued in 2009
IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
IC Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
IC Interpretation 11 FRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IC Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
IC Interpretation 14 FRS 119 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction
FRS 4 Insurance Contracts and TR i-3 Presentation of Financial Statements of Islamic Financial Institutions will also be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010. These FRS are, however, not applicable to the
Group or the Company.
Adoption of the above standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance or
position of the Group and the Company except for those discussed below:
FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Prior to 1 February 2010, information about financial instruments was disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. FRS 7 introduces new disclosures to
improve the information about financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative
information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including specified minimum disclosures
about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, including sensitivity analysis to market risk.
The Group and the Company have applied FRS 7 prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions.
Hence, the new disclosures have not been applied to the comparatives. The new disclosures are included
throughout the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2011.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
FRS 8 Operating Segments
FRS 8, which replaces FRS 114 Segment Reporting, specifies how an entity should report information about its
operating segments, based on information about the components of the entity that is available to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing their performance.
The Standard also requires the disclosure of information about the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major customers.
The Group concluded that the reportable operating segments determined in accordance with FRS 8 are the same
as the business segments previously identified under FRS 114. The Group has adopted FRS 8 retrospectively. These
revised disclosures, including the related revised comparative information, are shown in Note 31 to the financial
statements.
FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)
The revised FRS 101 introduces changes in the presentation and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
Standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity includes only
details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line.
The Standard also introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with all items of income and expense
recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised income and expense recognised directly in
equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The Group and the Company have elected to
present this statement as one single statement.
In addition, a statement of financial position is required at the beginning of the earliest comparative period following
a change in accounting policy, the correction of an error or the classification of items in the financial statements.
The revised FRS 101 also requires the Group to make new disclosures to enable users of the financial statements
to evaluate the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital (see Note 30).
The revised FRS 101 was adopted retrospectively by the Group and the Company.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Amendments to FRS 117 Lease
Prior to 1 February 2010, for all leases of land and buildings, if title is not expected to pass to the lessee by the end
of the lease term, the lessee normally does not receive substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. Hence, all leasehold and held for own use was classified by the Group as operating lease and where
necessary, the minimum lease payments or the up-front payments made were allocated between the land and the
buildings elements in proportion to the relative fair values for leasehold interests in the land element and buildings
element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The up-front payment represented prepaid lease payments and
were amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The amendments to FRS 117 Leases clarify that leases of land and buildings are classified as operating or finance
leases in the same way as leases of other assets. They also clarify that the present value of the residual value of the
property in a lease with a term of several decades would be negligible and accounting for the land element as a
finance lease in such circumstances would be consistent with the economic position of the lessee. Hence, the
adoption of the amendments to FRS 117 has resulted in certain unexpired land leases to be reclassified as finance
leases. The Group has applied this change in accounting policy retrospectively and certain comparatives have been
restated. The following are effects to the consolidated statement of financial positions as at 31 January 2010 arising
from the above change in accounting policy:
Group
2011
RM

Increase/(decrease) in:

22,376,183
(22,376,183)

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

The following comparatives have been restated:

As
previously
stated
RM

Adjustments
RM

As
restated
RM

Statements of financial position
Group
31 January 2010
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

20,575,614
22,585,549
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
Amendments to FRS 117 Lease (continued)
As
previously
stated
RM

Adjustments
RM

As
restated
RM

Statements of financial position (continued)
Group (continued)
1 February 2009
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

21,927,197
22,788,915

22,788,915
(22,788,915)

44,716,112
-

FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
FRS 139 establishes principles for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to
buy and sell non-financial items. The Group and the Company have adopted FRS 139 prospectively on 1 February
2010 in accordance with the transitional provisions. The effects arising from the adoption of this Standard has been
accounted for by adjusting the opening balance of retained earnings as at 1 February 2010. Comparatives are not
restated. The details of the changes in accounting policies and the effects arising from the adoption of FRS 139 are
discussed below:
Non-hedging derivatives
Prior to 1 February 2010, all derivative financial instruments were recognised in the financial statements only
upon settlement. These instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting under FRS 139. Hence, upon the
adoption of FRS 139, all derivatives held by the Group as at 1 February 2010 are recognised at their fair values
totalling RM1,602,144 and are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Impairment of trade and other receivables
Prior to 1 February 2010, provision for doubtful debts was recognised when it was considered uncollectible.
Upon the adoption of FRS 139, an impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
receivable’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
receivable’s original effective interest rate. As at 1 February 2010, the Group has remeasured the allowance for
impairment losses as at that date in accordance with FRS 139 and the difference is recognised as adjustments to
the opening balance of retained earnings as at that date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (continued)
Inter-company loans
During the current and prior years, the Company granted interest-free or low-interest loans and advances to
its subsidiaries. Prior to 1 February 2011, these loans and advances were recorded at cost in the Company’s
financial statements. Upon the adoption of FRS 139, the interest-free or law-interest loans or advances are
recorded initially at a fair value that is lower than cost. The difference between the fair value and cost of the
loan or advance is recognised as an additional investment in the subsidiary. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
loans and advances are measured at amortised cost. As a 1 February 2011, the Company has remeasured such
loans and advances at their amortised cost of and the adjustments to their previous carrying amounts are
recognised as adjustments to the opening balance of retained earnings as at that date.
The following are effects arising from the above changes in accounting policies:
Increase/(decrease)
As at
31 January 2011
RM

As at
1 February 2010
RM

(2,711)
(1,604,855)

2,711
1,604,855

Statements of financial position
Group
Derivatives (assets)
Derivatives (liabilities)
Trade and other receivables
- Amounts due from related company
Trade and other payables
- Amount due to ultimate holding company
Retained earnings

422,177
(785,994)
2,810,315
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (continued)
Increase/(decrease)
Group
2010
RM
Statement of comprehensive income
Other income
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit from continuing operations, net of tax
Profit net of tax

(2,810,315)
(2,810,315)
(2,810,315)
(2,810,315)
Decrease
2010
Sen per share

Earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

(7.01)
(7.01)

2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been issued but not yet
effective:
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 March 2010
Amendments to FRS 132: Financial Instruments: Presentation
(paragraphs 11, 16 and 97E relating to classification of Right Issues)
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
FRS 1: First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
FRS 3: Business Combinations (revised)
Amendments to FRS 127: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Amendments to FRS 2: Share-based Payment
Amendments to FRS 5: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Amendments to FRS 138: Intangible Assets
Amendments to IC Interpretation 9: Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
IC Interpretation 12: Service Concession Arrangements
IC Interpretation 16: Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
IC Interpretation 17: Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 30 August 2010
Amendments to IC Interpretation 15: Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
Amendments to FRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 7
Disclosures for First-Time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 2: Group Cash-Settled Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to FRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
IC Interpretation 4: Determining whether an Arrangement Contain a Lease
IC Interpretation 18: Transfer of Assets from Customers
Amendments to FRSs and IC interpretation 13 contained in the document entitled
“Improvements to FRSs (2010)”
Technical Release 3: Guidance on Disclosures of Transition to IFRSs
Technical Release i4: Shariah Compliant Sale Contracts
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
Amendments to IC Interpretation 14: Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirements
IC Interpretation 19: Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
Amendments to FRS 124: Related Party Disclosure
Except for the changes in accounting policies arising from the adoption of the revised FRS 3, the amendments to
FRS 127 and IC Interpretation 15, as well as the new disclosures required under the Amendments to FRS 7, the
directors expect that the adoption of the other standards and interpretations above will have no material impact
on the financial statements in the period of initial application. The nature of the impending changes in accounting
policy on adoption of the revised FRS 3, the amendments to FRS 127 and IC Interpretation 15 are described
below.

57

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 January 2011
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
(a)

Revised FRS 3 Business Combinations and Amendments to FRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
The revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010. The revised FRS 3
introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations occurring after 1 July 2010.
These changes will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an
acquisition occurs, and future reported results. The Amendments to FRS 127 require that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted for as an equity transaction.
Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will they give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well
as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other consequential amendments have been made to FRS 107
Statement of Cash Flows, FRS 112 Income Taxes, FRS 121 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,
FRS 128 Investments in Associates and FRS 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. The changes from revised FRS
3 and Amendments to FRS 127 will affect future acquisitions or loss of control and transactions with
minority interests. The standards may be early adopted. However, the Group does not intend to early
adopt.

2.4

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies
are applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.4

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. Adjustments to those fair values relating to previously held interests are treated as a revaluation
and recognised in other comprehensive income. The cost of a business combination is measured as the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. Any excess of the cost of business
combination over the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities is recorded as goodwill on the statement of financial position. The accounting policy for
goodwill is set out in Note 2.9. Any excess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of business combination is recognised as income
in profit or loss on the date of acquisition. When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives separated
from the host contract by the acquiree are reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination results in a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
under the contract.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.5

Transactions with minority interests
Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by the Group and
are presented separately in profit or loss of the Group and within equity in the consolidated statements of financial
position, separately from parent shareholders’ equity. Transactions with minority interests are accounted for using
the entity concept method, whereby, transactions with minority interests are accounted for as transactions with
owners. On acquisition of minority interests, the difference between the consideration and book value of the share
of the net assets acquired is recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to minority interests is
recognised directly in equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.6

Foreign currency
(a)

Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

(b)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary items
that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign
currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group on disposal of the foreign
operation.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary
items are also recognised directly in equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.7

Property, plant and equipment, and depreciation
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment and furniture and fixtures are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Leasehold lands and buildings of the Company has not been revalued since they were last revalued. The directors
have not adopted a policy of regular revaluations of such assets and no later valuation has been recorded. As
permitted under the transitional provision of IAS 16 (Revised): Property, Plant and Equipment, these assets
continue to be stated at their 1993 valuation less accumulated depreciation.
Leasehold lands are depreciated over the period of the respective leases. Construction-in-progress is not
depreciated as these assets are not available for use. Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
provided for on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset to its residual value over the estimated useful
life, at the following annual rates:

Buildings
Tractors and motor vehicles
Plant, machinery and equipment
Equipment, furniture and fixtures

- 2% to 10%
20%
- 5% to 10%
- 10% to 20%

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that the
amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8

Biological assets
Oil palm planting expenditure
All expenses incurred in land preparation, planting and developing of oil palm plantations up to maturity are
capitalised as biological assets. A portion of the indirect overheads which include general and administrative
expenses and interest expense incurred on immature plantation is similarly capitalised under biological assets until
such time when the plantation attains maturity. All expenses subsequent to maturity are recognised in profit or loss.
Oil palm planting expenditure incurred up to maturity is amortised over 25 years.
Biological assets are stated at revalued amount, which is the fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined from market-based evidence by appraisal that is
undertaken by professionally qualified valuers. Revaluation are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at
the balance sheet date. Any revaluation surplus is credited to the revaluation reserve included within equity, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously recognised. A
revaluation deficit is first offset against unutilised previously recognised revaluation surplus in respect of the same
asset and the balance is thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Upon disposal or retirement of an asset, any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset is transferred directly to retained earnings.
Oil palm replanting expenditure is capitalised under oil palm planting expenditure in the year in which it is incurred
until maturity.

2.9

Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the acquisition date, to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.9

Intangible assets (continued)
Goodwill (continued)
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate
of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)).
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups
of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of
units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously revalued where the
revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is
measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment loss on
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.11

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment losses.

2.12

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the
Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group and the Company determine the classification of their financial assets at initial recognition, and the
categories include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading
or are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets held for trading are derivatives (including
separated embedded derivatives) or financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or net losses
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include exchange differences, interest and
dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend income on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other income.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current. Financial
assets that is held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that is not
held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current based on the settlement date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12

Financial assets (continued)
(b)

Loans and receivables
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as
loans and receivables.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than 12
months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.

(c)

Held-to-maturity investments
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the held-to-maturity
investments are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those having maturity within 12
months after the reporting date which are classified as current.

(d)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale are financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified in any of the
three preceding categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from
changes in fair value of the financial asset are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group and the Company's right to receive payment is established.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12

Financial assets (continued)
(d)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
impairment loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected to be realised
within 12 months after the reporting date.

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Group and the
Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.
2.13

Impairment of financial assets
The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired.
(a)

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been
incurred, the Group and the Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. For certain categories of
financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s and the Company's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.13

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(a)

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(b)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial difficulties of the issuer or obligor,
and the disappearance of an active trading market are considerations to determine whether there is
objective evidence that investment securities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are impaired.
If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in profit or loss in the
subsequent periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss in profit or loss.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.14

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These also include bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

2.15

Inventories
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are valued on the weighted average method. The cost of raw materials comprises cost purchase. The
costs of finished goods and work-in-progress comprise costs of raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
appropriate proportions of manufacturing overheads based normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.16

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the
obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.17

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability.
Financial liabilities, within the scope of FRS 139, are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial
liabilities.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.17

Financial liabilities (continued)
(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities held for trading include derivatives entered into by the Group and the Company that do
not meet the hedge accounting criteria. Derivative liabilities are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently stated at fair value, with any resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or
losses on derivatives include exchange differences.
The Group and the Company have not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or
loss.

(b)

Other financial liabilities
The Group’s and the Company's other financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables and loans
and borrowings.
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.
For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.18

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when the
activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs
are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or
sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that the Group and the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.19

Employee benefits
(a)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Short term accumulating compensated absences such as
paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement
to future compensated absences. Short term non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

(b)

Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into separate entities or funds and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if any of the funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee services in the current and preceding financial years. Such contributions are recognised as an
expense in the income statement as incurred. As required by law, companies in Malaysia make such
contributions to the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”).

2.20

Leases
(a)

As lessee
Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount
capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged to profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.20

Leases (continued)
(a)

As lessee (continued)
Leased assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

(b)

As lessor
Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified
as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same bases as rental income.

2.21

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised:
(a)

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of sales taxes and upon the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the buyer. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant
uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(b)

Rendering of services
Revenue from services rendered is recognized net of service taxes as and when the services are performed.

(c)

Rental income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(d)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(e)

Interest income
Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the asset.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.22

Income taxes
(a)

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

(b)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:
-

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

-

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised except:
-

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

-

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.22

Income taxes (continued)
(b)

Deferred tax (continued)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on
acquisition.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

(c)

Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax except:
-

Where the sales tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

-

Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.23

Segment reporting
For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating segments based on their products and services
which are independently managed by the respective segment managers responsible for the performance of the
respective segments under their charge. The segment managers report directly to the management of the Group
who regularly review the segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess the segment
performance. Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in Note 31, including the factors used
to identify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information.

2.24

Share capital and share issuance expenses
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which
they are declared.

2.25

Contingencies
A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the Group.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.
3.1

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
(a)

Useful lives of plant and equipment
The cost of plant and machinery is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets’ remaining useful lives.
Management estimates the useful lives of these assets to be between 10 to 20 years. These are common life
expectancies applied in the cocoa and oil palm planting and processing industies. Changes in the expected
level of usage and technological development could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values
of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised. The carrying amount of the Group’s
plant and equipment at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 13. A 3% difference in the expected useful
lives of these assets from management’s estimates would result in approximately 0.27% variance in the
Group’s profit for the year.

(b)

Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which goodwill is allocated. Estimating a
value-in-use amount requires management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 January 2011 was RM2,623,596 (2010: RM2,623,596). Further
details are disclosed in Note 15.

(c)

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors
such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant
delay in payments.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates (continued)
3.1

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and biological assets
During the current financial year, the Group had carried out the impairment test based on a variety of
estimation including the value-in-use of the CGU to which the property, plant and equipment and biological
assets are allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. As at 31 January 2011, no impairment were considered necessary and the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and biological assets of the Group were RM43,990,887(2010:
RM43,158,163) and RM13,348,245(2010: RM14,055,976) respectively.

(e)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unutilized tax losses and unabsorbed capital and agriculture
allowances to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses, capital
and agriculture allowances can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The total carrying value of recognised tax losses, capital
allowances of the Group and of the Company were RM14,977,152 (2010: RM14,090,880) and RM33,608
(2010: RM33,608) respectively and the unrecognised tax losses and capital allowances of the Group was
RM17,898,812 (2010: RM19,555,408).

4.

Revenue
Group

Sale of plantation produce
Sale of cocoa products
Sale of dried cocoa beans
Sale of crude palm kernel oil
Sale of palm kernel expeller
Administrative fees from subsidiaries

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

8,903,517
19,774,766
58,170
128,206,747
9,867,651
-

4,869,892
24,135,044
5,156
52,139,499
2,568,131
-

840,000

840,000

166,810,851
========

83,717,722
========

840,000
========

840,000
========
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5.

Cost of sales
Group

Cost of goods sold
Cost of services rendered

6.

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

143,393,355
-

79,576,470
-

1,391,756

1,273,030

143,393,355
========

79,576,470
========

1,391,756
========

1,273,030
========

3,634,810
35,251
1,323,315
788,362
78,000
629,869
227,906

4,381,024
23,861
905,928
80,250
217,435
58,892
521,588
164,707

743,876
34,999
42

752,797
11

6,717,513
========

6,353,685
========

778,917
========

752,808
========

8,465
372,312
5,998,972
234,529

8,363
126,692
5,673,616
112,189

22
4,602
-

13
16,387
-

6,614,278

5,920,860

4,624

16,400

-

-

4,624
========

16,400
========

Other income
Interest income
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Gain on foreign exchange - realised
Fair value gain on financial instruments
Rental income
Sale of cocoa shells
Sale of used gunny sacks
Transport and handling charges received
Miscellaneous

7.

Company

Finance costs
Interest expense on:
Bank overdrafts
Bankers’ acceptances
Overdue accounts
Term loan and revolving credits

Interest expense capitalized
in biological assets

6,614,278
========
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8.

Profit/(loss) before tax
The following amounts have been included in arriving at profit/(loss) before tax:
Group

Employee benefits expense (Note 9)
Non-executive directors’
remuneration (Note 10)
Amortisation of biological assets
Auditors’ remuneration:
- Statutory audits:
- Current year
- Under/(over)provision in prior years
- Other services
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 13)
Impairment loss on investment in
subsidiary
Loss on commodity futures
Property, plant and equipment written off
Rental of premises
Rental of equipment

9.

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

4,493,524

4,128,751

1,244,809

1,187,864

63,000
707,731

33,000
538,503

63,000
-

33,000
-

55,000
5,845

55,000
5,000
4,020

25,000
850

25,000
5,000
800

1,533,069

3,115,386

145

418

172,253
43,220
43,350
========

3,370,343
399
42,000
39,669
========

5,269,341
2,400
9,000
========

2,230,081
2,400
8,700
========

4,131,072
337,912
24,540

3,820,653
281,670
26,428

1,102,012
139,943
2,854

1,071,822
113,584
2,458

4,493,524
========

4,128,751
========

1,244,809
========

1,187,864
========

Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and allowances
Contributions to defined contribution plan
Social security contributions

Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are executive directors’ remuneration amounting
to RM655,112 (2010: RM553,401) and RM615,476 (2010: RM522,144) respectively as further disclosed in Note 10.
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10. Directors’ remuneration
Group
2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

655,112

553,401

615,476

522,144

63,000

33,000

63,000

33,000

718,112

586,401

678,476

555,144

8,130

8,928

8,130

8,928

726,242
=======

595,329
=======

686,606
=======

564,072
=======

Executive directors’ remuneration (Note 9):
Other emoluments
Non-executives directors’ remuneration
(Note 8):
Fees
Total directors’ remuneration
Estimated monetary value of
benefits-in-kind
Total

Company

The details of remuneration receivable by directors of the Company during the year are as follows:
Group

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

469,440
58,296
87,740

469,440
52,704
-

469,440
58,296
87,740

469,440
52,704
-

615,476

522,144

615,476

522,144

8,130

8,928

8,130

8,928

623,606

531,072

623,606

531,072

63,000

33,000

63,000

33,000

686,606
=======

564,072
=======

686,606
=======

564,072
=======

Executive:
Salaries and other emoluments
Defined contribution plan
Bonus
Total executive directors’ remuneration
(excluding benefits-in-kind) (Note 9)
Estimated monetary value of
benefits-in-kind
Total executive directors’ remuneration
(including benefits-in-kind)
Non-executive:
Fees

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following bands
is analysed below:
Number of directors
2011
2010
Executive directors:
RM 50,001 to RM100,000
1
1
RM100,001 to RM150,000
3
3
Non-executive directors:
Less than RM50,000
3
3

79

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 January 2011
11. Income tax expenses

The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended 31 January 2011 and 2010 are:
Group

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

1,813,963

535,690

24,533

53,814

6,601

-

-

1,785,444

542,291

24,533

53,814

45,003

145,697

Statement of comprehensive income:
Current income tax:
- Malaysian income tax
- (Over)/underprovision in respect of
pervious years

(28,519)

Deferred income tax (Note 17):
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences
Overprovision in respect of
previous years
Income tax expense recognised in
profit or loss

-

(5,048)

45,003

140,649

1,830,447
=======

682,940
=======
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11. Income tax expenses (continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable corporate tax rate
for the years ended 31 January 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
Group
2011
RM
Accounting profit/(loss) before tax
Taxation at Malaysian statutory tax
rate of 25% (2010: 25%)
Adjustments:
Non-deductible expenses
Deferred tax assets not recognised
in respect of unused tax losses
and unabsorbed capital allowances
(Over)/underprovision of income tax in
respect of previous years
Overprovision of deferred
income tax in respect of previous years
Benefits from previously unrecognized
tax losses
Income tax expense recognised
in profit or loss

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

8,117,533
=======

(3,798,560)
=======

(5,214,887)
=======

(2,089,245)
=======

2,029,383

(949,640)

(1,303,722)

(522,311)

168,980

180,084

1,328,219

576,020

174,973

1,450,943

-

-

6,601

-

-

(5,048)

-

-

-

-

-

682,940
=======

24,497
=======

53,709
=======

(28,519)
(514,370)
1,830,447
=======

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) of the estimated assessable profit
for the year.
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12. Earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing profit/(loss) for the year, net of tax, attributable to owners
of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing profit/(loss) for the year, net of tax, attributable to
owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year plus the
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.
The following reflect the profit/(loss) and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the
years ended 31 January 2011 and 2010:
Group
2011
RM
Profit/(loss) net of tax, attributable to owners of the parent
used in the computation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
Adjustment
Profit/(loss) net of tax, attributable to owners of parent used
in the computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic
earnings/(loss) per share computation
Effect of dilution
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted
earnings/(loss) per shares computation*

2010
RM

6,287,086
-

(4,481,500)
-

6,287,086
=======

(4,481,500)
=======

Number
of shares

Number
of shares

40,096,092
-

40,096,092
-

40,096,092
=======

40,096,092
=======

* The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury shares
transactions during the year.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Land
and
buildings*
RM

Tractors
and
motor
vehicles
RM

Plant
and
machinery
RM

Equipment,
furniture
and
fixtures
RM

Construction
-inprogress
RM

Total
RM

13,091,882

1,676,912

26,827,946

534,347

10,516,928

52,648,015

22,995,281

-

-

-

-

22,995,281

Cost or valuation:
At 1 February 2009
As previously stated
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
As restated
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications

36,087,163
924,870
1,227,103

1,676,912
221,000
(83,917)
-

26,827,946
124,254
(49,477)
9,605,322

534,347
17,834
49,586

At 31 January 2010
(restated)

38,239,136

1,813,995

36,508,045

601,767

5,861

77,168,804

Representing:
At cost
At valuation

13,885,945
24,353,191

1,813,995
-

34,468,045
2,040,000

601,767
-

5,861
-

50,775,613
26,393,191

At 31 January 2010
(restated)

38,239,136

1,813,995

36,508,045

601,767

5,861

77,168,804

15,243,885

1,813,995

36,508,045

601,767

5,861

54,173,523

22,995,281

-

-

-

-

22,995,281

At 1 February 2010
As previously stated
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117

10,516,928
370,944
(10,882,011)

75,643,296
1,658,902
(133,394)
-

As restated
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications

38,239,136
386,079
548,820

1,813,995
78,000
(470,000)
6,701

36,508,045
36,022
-

601,767
162,000
(1,993)
-

5,861
1,704,241
(555,521)

77,168,804
2,366,342
(471,993)
-

At 31 January 2011

39,174,035

1,428,696

36,544,067

761,774

1,154,581

79,063,153

Representing:
At cost
At valuation

14,820,844
24,353,191

1,428,696
-

34,504,067
2,040,000

761,774
-

1,154,581
-

52,669,962
26,393,191

At 31 January 2011

39,174,035

1,428,696

36,544,067

761,774

1,154,581

79,063,153

83

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 January 2011
13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Group

Land
and
buildings*
RM

Tractors
and
motor
vehicles
RM

Plant
and
machinery
RM

Equipment,
furniture
and
fixtures
RM

Total
RM

5,283,236

1,270,498

23,811,153

355,931

30,720,818

206,366

-

-

-

206,366

5,489,602

1,270,498

23,811,153

355,931

30,927,184

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2009
As previously stated
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
As restated
Depreciation charge for
the year
Disposals
At 31 January 2010
(restated)

663,633
-

113,825
(30,551)

2,298,170
(1,378)

39,758
-

3,115,386
(31,929)

6,153,235

1,353,772

26,107,945

395,689

34,010,641

5,740,503

1,353,772

26,107,945

395,689

33,597,909

412,732

-

-

-

412,732

As restated
Depreciation charge for
the year
Disposals

6,153,235

1,353,772

26,107,945

395,689

34,010,641

At 31 January 2011

6,857,752

At 1 February 2010
As previously stated
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117

704,517
-

121,965
(469,999)
1,005,738
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Group
Net carrying amount:
At cost
At valuation
At 31 January 2010
Net carrying amount:
At cost
At valuation
At 31 January 2011

Land
and
buildings*
RM

Tractors
and
motor
vehicles
RM

Plant
and
machinery
RM

8,990,721
23,095,180

460,223
-

10,400,086
14

Equipment,
furniture Construction
and
-infixtures
progress
RM
RM
206,078
-

5,861
-

Total
RM
20,062,969
23,095,194

32,085,901
460,223
10,400,100
206,078
5,861 43,158,163
=====================================================
9,468,863
22,847,420

422,958
-

9,777,793
14

319,258
-

1,154,581
-

21,143,453
22,847,434

32,316,283
422,958
9,777,807
319,258
1,154,581 43,990,887
=====================================================

* Land and buildings of the Group comprise:
Leasehold
land
RM

Plantation
infrastructure
RM

Buildings
RM

Total
RM

-

1,188,322

11,903,560

13,091,882

-

-

22,995,281

Cost or valuation:
At 1 February 2009
As previously stated
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117

22,995,281

As restated
Additions
Reclassifications

22,995,281
-

1,188,322 11,903,560
893,600
31,270
57,979 1,169,124

36,087,163
924,870
1,227,103

At 31 January 2010
(restated)

22,995,281

2,139,901 13,103,954

38,239,136

Representing:
At cost
At valuation

2,090
22,993,191

2,139,901 11,743,954
1,360,000

13,885,945
24,353,191

At 31 January 2010
(restated)

22,995,281

2,139,901 13,103,954

38,239,136

85

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No. 307097-A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 January 2011
13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
* Land and buildings of the Group comprise (continued):
Leasehold
land
RM

Plantation
infrastructure
RM

Buildings
RM

Total
RM

Cost or valuation
At 1 February 2010
As previously stated
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117

-

2,139,901

13,103,954

15,243,855

22,995,281

-

-

22,995,281

As restated
Additions
Reclassifications

22,995,281
-

2,139,901
386,079
548,820

13,103,954
-

38,239,136
386,079
548,820

At 31 January 2011

22,995,281

3,074,800

13,103,954

39,174,035

Representing:
At cost
At valuation

2,090
22,993,191

3,074,800
-

11,743,954
1,360,000

14,820,844
24,353,191

At 31 January 2011

22,995,281

3,074,800

13,103,954

39,174,035

-

221,050

5,062,186

5,283,236

206,366

-

-

206,366

206,366

221,050

5,062,186

5,489,602

206,366

16,125

441,142

663,633

412,732

237,175

5,503,328

6,153,235

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2009
As previously stated
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
As restated
Depreciation charge for
the year
At 31 January 2010
(as restated)
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
* Land and buildings of the Group comprise (continued):
Leasehold
land
RM

Plantation
infrastructure
RM

Buildings
RM

Total
RM

-

237,175

5,503,328

5,740,503

412,732

-

-

412,732

412,732

237,175

5,503,328

6,153,235

206,366

39,768

458,383

704,517

619,098

276,943

5,961,711

6,857,752

2,011
22,580,538

1,902,726
-

7,085,984
514,642

8,990,721
23,095,180

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2010
As previously stated
Effects of adopting the
amendments to FRS 117
As restated
Depreciation charge for
the year
At 31 January 2011
(as restated)
Net carrying amount
At cost
At valuation
At 31 January 2010

7,600,626
32,085,901
22,582,549
1,902,726
======================================

At cost
At valuation

1,985
22,374,198

At 31 January 2011

7,142,243
32,316,283
22,376,183
2,797,857
======================================
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Motor
vehicles
RM

Company

Equipment,
furniture
and
fixtures
RM

Total
RM

At 31 January 2011
Cost
At 1 February 2010
Disposal

734,629
(470,000)

16,258
-

750,887
(470,000)

At 31 January 2011

264,629

16,258

280,887

734,626
(469,999)

16,107
145
-

750,733
145
(469,999)

264,627

16,252

280,879

2
========

6
========

8
========

Cost
At 1 February 2009 and
at 31 January 2010

734,629

16,258

750,887

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2009
Depreciation charge for the year

734,626
-

15,689
418

750,315
418

At 31 January 2010

734,626

16,107

750,733

3
========

151
========

154
========

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2010
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposal
At 31 January 2011
Net carrying amount

At 31 January 2010

Net carrying amount
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(a)

Leasehold land, buildings and plant and machinery were revalued by the directors based on independent professional
valuations carried out by C.H. Williams, Talhar & Wong (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd. in 1984 based on open market value on an
existing use basis. The Group applied the transitional provisions in IAS 16 (Revised): Property, Plant and Equipment by
virtue of which a reporting enterprise which does not adopt a policy of revaluation is allowed to retain carrying
amounts on the basis of their previous revaluations.
If the leasehold land, buildings and plant and machinery were measured using the cost model, the carrying amounts
would be as follows:

Group
At 31 January 2011
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount
At 31 January 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount

Plant and
machinery
RM

Long term
leasehold
land
RM

Buildings
RM

Total
RM

5,616,210
5,215,804

3,983,492
123,709

1,731,289
1,130,071

11,330,991
6,469,584

400,406
=======

3,859,783
=======

601,218
=======

4,861,407
=======

5,616,210
5,144,024

3,983,492
110,919

1,731,289
1,080,844

11,330,991
6,335,787

472,186
=======

3,872,573
=======

650,445
=======

4,995,204
=======
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14.

Biological assets
Oil palm
planting
expenditure
RM
Group
At 31 January 2011
Cost or valuation
At 1 February 2010
Additions during the year

15,574,340
____________

At 31 January 2011

15,574,340
____________

Representing:
At cost
At valuation

6,228,200
9,346,140
____________

At 31 January 2011

15,574,340
____________

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 February 2010
Amortisation during the year

1,518,364
707,731
____________

At 31 January 2011

2,226,095
____________

Net carrying amount
At cost
At valuation

4,372,019
8,976,226
____________

At 31 January 2011

13,348,245
=========
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Biological assets (continued)
Oil palm
planting
expenditure
RM
Group (continued)
At 31 January 2010
Cost or valuation
At 1 February 2009
Additions during the year

14,834,952
739,388
_____________

At 31 January 2010

15,574,340
_____________

Representing:
At cost
At valuation

6,228,200
9,346,140
_____________

At 31 January 2010

15,574,340
_____________

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 February 2009
Amortisation during the year

979,861
538,503
_____________

At 31 January 2010

1,518,364
_____________

Net carrying amount
At cost
At valuation

4,560,412
9,495,564
_____________

At 31 January 2010

14,055,976
==========

(a)

Biological assets were revalued on 30 September 2006 by Jurunilai & Perunding Hartanah Sabah, an independent
professional valuer. Fair value is determined by reference to open market values on an existing use basis.
At 31 January 2011, had the revalued biological assets of the Group been carried under the cost model, the net
carrying amount would have been RM9,703,569 (2010: RM8,627,246).

(b)

Interest expense capitalised during the financial year under biological assets of the Group amounted to RM Nil
(2010: RM3,494).
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Group
2011
RM

2010
RM

2,623,596
======

2,623,596
======

Goodwill arising from business combination
At end of year
Impairment testing of goodwill
Allocation of goodwill
Goodwill has been allocated to the plantation operation cash-generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment testing.
Key assumption used in value-in-use calculations
The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections
from financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections and the forecasted growth rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the five-year period are
as follows:
Pre-tax
Growth rate
discount rate
2011
2010
2011
2010
Plantation operation

6.5
====

6.5
====

8.0
====

8.0
====

The following describes each key assumptions on which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:
(i)

Budgeted gross margins
The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins achieved
in the year immediately before the budgeted year increased for expected efficiency improvements.

(ii)

Growth rates
The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the long-term average growth rate for the industry.

(iii)

Pre-tax discount rate
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the plantation industry.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of the plantation operation, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying values of the plantation operation to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts except for any significant changes in the market selling price of its plantation
produce may have a significant impact on the growth margin assumption.
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16. Investment in subsidiaries
Company
2011
RM
Unquoted shares, at cost
- Accumulated impairment losses

37,563,852
(7,499,422)
_________
30,064,430
=======

2010
RM
37,563,852
(2,230,081)
_________
35,333,771
=======

Details of the subsidiaries, which are all incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Proportion of
ownership interest
2010
2011

Principal activities

Cacao Paramount
Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Processing of cocoa products, trading
of crude palm kernel oil and operation
of palm kernel crushing plant and oil
palm plantations

Majulah Koko Tawau
Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Processing and sale of cocoa butter,
cocoa powder and other cocoa
products, and trading and export of
cocoa beans

Tawau Cocoa Estate
Sdn. Bhd.

100%

100%

Operation of oil palm and cocoa
plantations

17. Deferred tax
Group

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

At 1 February
Recognised in income statement

6,284,668
45,003

6,144,019
140,649

(8,363)
(36)

(8,258)
(105)

At 31 January

6,329,671
======

6,284,668
======

(8,399)
======

(8,363)
======

(8,399)
6,338,070

(8,363)
6,293,031

(8,399)
-

(8,363)
-

6,329,671
======

6,284,668
======

(8,399)
======

(8,363)
======

Presented after appropriate offsetting
as follows:
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
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Deferred tax (continued)
The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting are
as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities of the Group:
Biological
assets
RM

Property,
plant and
equipment
RM

Total
RM

At 1 February 2010
Recognised in income statement

3,431,338
(113,423)

6,376,050
379,994

9,807,388
266,571

At 31 January 2011

3,317,915

6,756,044

10,073,959

At 1 February 2009
Recognised in income statement

3,281,266
150,072

5,994,604
381,446

9,275,870
531,518

At 31 January 2010

3,431,338

6,376,050

9,807,388

Unabsorbed
capital
allowances
RM

Unused
tax
losses
RM

Total
RM

Deferred tax assets of the Group:

At 1 February 2010
Recognised in income statement

(2,531,331)
(131,922)

(991,389)
(89,646)

(3,522,720)
(221,568)

At 31 January 2011

(2,663,253)

(1,081,035)

(3,744,288)

At 1 February 2009
Recognised in income statement

(2,120,107)
(411,224)

(1,011,744)
20,355

(3,131,851)
(390,869)

At 31 January 2010

(2,531,331)

(991,389)

(3,522,720)
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Deferred tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities of the Company:
Property,
plant and
equipment
RM
At 1 February 2010
Recognised in income statement

39
(36)

At 31 January 2011

3

At 1 February 2009
Recognised in income statement

144
(105)

At 31 January 2010

39

Deferred tax assets of the Company:
Unabsorbed
capital
allowances
RM
At 1 February 2010
Recognised in income statement

(8,402)
-

At 31 January 2011

(8,402)

At 1 February 2009
Recognised in income statement

(8,402)
-

At 31 January 2010

(8,402)
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Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:
Group

Unused tax losses
Unabsorbed capital allowances

2011
RM

2010
RM

13,098,572
4,800,240

15,156,052
4,399,356

17,898,812

19,555,408

The unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances of the Group are available for offsetting against future taxable
business profits of certain subsidiaries.

18. Trade and other receivables

Group
2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

778,081
64,886,435

5,142,835
70,632,942

-

-

65,664,516

75,775,777

-

-

7,049,610

385
1,298,265

13,231,988
-

3,498,529
2,416

7,049,610
70,475
52,115
589,765

1,298,650
70,176
164,277
5,613,813

13,231,988
1,050
20,858
-

3,500,945
1,050
31,218
-

7,761,965

7,146,916

13,253,896

3,533,213

73,426,481
=======

82,922,693
=======

13,253,896
=======

3,533,213
=======

Current
Trade receivables
Third parties
Amount due from a related company

Other receivables
Amounts due from related parties:
Ultimate holding company
Subsidiaries
Related companies
Deposits
Prepayments
Sundry receivables

Company
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Group
2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

=======

=======

=======

10,283,735
=======

73,426,481

82,922,693

13,253,896

13,816,948

11,452,088

3,322,437

2,194

25,795

84,878,569
=======

86,245,130
=======

13,256,090
=======

13,842,743
=======

Non-current
Other receivable
Amount due from holding company
Total trade and other receivables
(current and non-current)
Add: Cash and bank balances
(Note 20)
Total loans and receivables

(a)

Company

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are generally on 30 to 60 days (2010: 30 to 60 days) terms. Trade receivables within credit period
granted are non-interest bearing. Interest rate of 5.75% (2010: 5.75%) is being charged on trade receivables which
exceeded credit period granted.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables is as follows:
Group
2011
RM

2010
RM

1,118,788

14,727,755

1 to 30 days past due not impaired
31 to 60 days past due not impaired
61 to 90 days past due not impaired
91 to 120 days past due not impaired
More than 121 days past due not impaired

214,007
29,454,562
218,859
270,801
34,387,499

13,125,547
326,616
325,157
11,124,524
36,146,178

Impaired

64,545,728
-

61,048,022
-

65,664,516
=======

75,775,777
=======

Neither past due nor impaired
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18. Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

Trade receivables (continued)
Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records with
the Group.
None of the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the
financial year.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM65,664,516 (2010: RM75,775,777) that are past due at the
reporting date but not impaired. These receivables are unsecured in nature. As at the date of this report,
approximately 89% of these trade receivables have been subsequently settled. The remaining balance is expected to
be fully settled by 31 July 2011.

(b)

Amounts due to the Company from related companies
Related companies comprise companies within the HTG Holdings Sdn. Bhd. group of companies.
The amounts due from related parties bear interest at rates of 5.55% to 6.3% (2010: 5.55%) per annum and are
repayable on demand. These amounts are unsecured and are to be settled in cash.

(c)

Sundry receivables
Included in sundry receivables of the Group is an amount of RM378,249 (2010: RM4,725,884) placed with MF Global
Singapore Pte. Limited.. This represents margin deposit paid in respect of futures commodity contracts to be entered
into by a subsidiary company. There was no outstanding futures commodity contract as at 31 January 2011.

19. Inventories

Group

Cost
Finished goods
Raw materials
Stores and supplies
Goods in-transit

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

26,943,059
12,129
2,385,751
82,997

42,245,077
37,630
2,245,026
133,921

-

-

29,423,936
=======

44,661,654
=======

=======

=======

There were no inventories stated at net realisable value as at 31 January 2011 (2010: Nil).
During the year, the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales of the Group was RM143,393,355 (2010:
RM79,576,470).
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20. Cash and cash equivalents

Group

Cash and bank balances

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

11,452,088
=======

3,322,437
=======

2,194
=======

25,795
=======

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following as at the balance sheet
date:
Group
2011
RM
Cash and bank balances
Bank overdrafts

11,452,088
(9,330)

Cash and cash equivalents

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

3,322,437
-

2,194
(9,330)

25,795
-

11,442,758
=======

3,322,437
=======

(7,136)
========

25,795
=======

21,644,000
2,000,000
1,560,000

7,701,000
2,000,000
1,395,210

-

-

25,204,000

11,096,210

-

-

9,330

-

9,330

-

25,213,330

11,096,210

9,330

-

4,030,000

5,754,790

-

-

21,644,000
9,330
2,000,000
5,590,000

7,701,000
2,000,000
7,150,000

9,330
-

-

29,243,330
=======

16,851,000
=======

9,330
=======

=======

21. Loans and borrowings

Short term borrowings
Secured:
Bankers’ acceptances
Revolving credit
Term loan

Unsecured:
Bank overdrafts

Long term borrowings:
Secured:
Term loan
Total borrowings
Bankers’ acceptances
Bank overdrafts
Revolving credit
Term loan
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21. Loans and borrowings (continued)

The bankers’ acceptance, revolving credit and term loan plus interest thereon of the Group are secured by Corporate
Guarantees given by the Company.
The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowing as at 31 January 2011 are as follows:
Group

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

On demand or within one year
More than 1 year and less than 2 years
More than 2 years and less than 5 years

25,213,330
1,560,000
2,470,000

11,096,210
1,430,921
4,323,869

9,330
-

-

Cash and cash equivalents

29,243,330
=======

16,851,000
=======

9,330
=======

=======

4,207,284
1,703,968

4,023,327
13,504,312

-

-

5,911,252

17,527,639

-

-

632,164

21,147,987

-

394,490
7,469

632,164

21,147,987

-

401,959

419,718
2,050
993,759

1,226,877
2,050
1,149,933

40,746
1,460

72,320
165,064

2,047,691

23,526,847

42,206

639,343

7,958,943
=======

41,054,486
=======

42,206
=======

639,343
=======

22. Trade and other payables

Current
Trade payables
Third parties
Amounts due to related companies

Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Amounts due to related companies

Accruals
Deposits
Sundry payables

Total payables
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22.

Trade and other payables (continued)
Group

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

78,574,063
========

79,082,425
========

========

========

86,533,006
29,243,330

120,136,911
16,851,000

42,206
9,330

639,343
-

115,776,336
========

136,987,911
========

51,536
========

639,343
========

Non-current
Other payable
Amount due to holding company
Total trade and other payables
Add: Loans and borrowings (Note 21)
Total financial liabilities carried at
amortised cost

23.

(a)

Trade payables
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to
60 days (2010: 30 to 60 days).

(b)

Amounts due to related companies
The amounts due to related companies bear interest at rates of 5.55% to 6.3% (2010: 5.55%) per annum and are
repayable on demand. These amounts are unsecured and are to be settled in cash.

(c)

Amount due to holding company
Amount due to holding company bears interest at rate of 5.55% to 6.3% (2010: 5.55%) per annum and is repayable
after 12 months.

Share capital

Number of ordinary
shares of RM1 each
2011

Authorised
At beginning and end of year

2011
RM

2010
RM

100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000
======= ======= ======= =======

Issued and fully paid
At beginning and end of year

24.

2010

Amount

40,096,902
=======

40,096,902 40,096,902 40,096,902
======= ======= =======

Asset revaluation reserve
This reserve includes the cumulative net change, net of deferred tax effects, arising from the revaluation of biological assets
and leasehold land above their cost.
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25. Retained earnings
Prior to the year of assessment 2008, Malaysian companies adopted the full imputation system. In accordance with the
Finance Act, 2007 which was gazetted on 28 December 2007, companies shall not be entitled to deduct tax on dividend
paid, credited or distributed to its shareholders, and such dividends will be exempted from tax in the hands of the
shareholders ("single tier system"). However, there is a transitional period of six years, expiring on 31 January 2013, to
allow companies to pay franked dividends to their shareholders under limited circumstances. Companies also have an
irrevocable option to disregard the 108 balance and opt to pay dividends under the single tier system. The change in the
tax legislation also provides for the 108 balance to be locked-in as at 31 December 2007 in accordance with Section 39
of the Finance Act, 2007.
The Company did not elect for the irrevocable option to disregard the 108 balance. Accordingly, during the transitional
period, the Company may utilise the credit in the 108 balance as at 31 January 2011 and 2010 to distribute cash dividend
payments to ordinary shareholdings as defined under the Finance Act, 2007. As at 31 January 2011 and 2010, the Company
has sufficient credit in the 108 balance to pay franked dividends out of its entire retained earnings.

26. Capital commitments
Group

Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contractor for

102

2011
RM

2010
RM

1,145,000
-

500,000

1,145,000
======

500,000
======
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27. Related party disclosures
(a) Sale and purchase of goods and services
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company had the
following transactions with related parties during the financial year:
Note

2011
RM

2010
RM

144,122
4,695,229

567,588
4,760,224

45,600
87,402
1,653,110
549,383
3,430,410
1,320,419
71,529
77,040
2,212,364
229,068
800
104,675,313
7,110,275
7,220
2,139,989
51,057,232

9,600
57,267
11,040
1,698,438
722,168
66,989
77,040
60,000
204,055
124,927
52,139,499
4,367,213
2,419,440
31,213,812

98,545
========

541,875
========

Group
Holding company:
Interest received
Interest paid

(iii)
(iii)

Related companies*:
Administrative fee paid
Commission fees paid
Electricity and water paid
Freight and handling charges paid
Interest received
Interest paid
Rental of computer paid
Rental received
Rental paid
Insurance paid
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Sale of crude palm kernel oil
Sale of oil palm FFB
Sale of timber planks
Purchase of goods
Purchase of crude palm oil

(ii)
(ii)
(iv)
(iii)
(iii)
(ii)
(i)
(ii)
(ii)
(i)
(i)
(i)
(ii)
(ii)

Freight and handling charges paid to an associated
company of the holding company

(iv)
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27. Related party disclosures (continued)

Note

2011
RM

2010
RM

Company
Holding company:
Interest received

(iii)

144,122

567,588

Subsidiaries:
Administrative fees received
Interest received
Interest paid

(iii)
(iii)

840,000
583,201
1,816

840,000
184,874
15,436

Related companies*:
Interest paid
Rental of computer
Insurance paid

(iii)
(ii)
(ii)

2,786
9,000
4,932
=======

951
8,700
5,304
=======

* Related companies are companies within the HTG Holdings Sdn. Bhd. group.
(i)

The sale of products and rendering of services to subsidiaries and related companies were made according to the
published prices and conditions offered to the major customers of the Group and the Company, except that a longer
credit period is normally granted.

(ii)

The purchase of products and services from related companies were made according to the published prices and
conditions offered by these related parties to their major customers, except that a longer credit period is normally
granted.

(iii)

The interest income and interest expense arose from the amounts due from/(to) related parties. Further details are
disclosed in Note 18 and Note 22.

(iv)

The directors consider that the freight and handling charges paid were made according to the published prices and
conditions similar to those offered to the major customers of the related parties

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions as at 31 January 2011 are disclosed in
Note 18 and Note 22.
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27. Related party disclosures (continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors who are also the members of key management during the year was as follows:
Group

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

657,800

531,969

620,180

502,440

60,312

54,432

58,296

52,704

718,112
=======

586,401
=======

678,476
=======

555,144
=======

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits:
Defined contribution plan

28. Fair value of financial instruments
(a) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are not
reasonable approximation of fair value.
There are no financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are not reasonable
approximation of fair value.
(b) Determination of fair value
Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value
The followings are classes of financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation of fair value:
Note
Trade and other receivables (current)
Trade and other payables (current)
Other payables (non-current)
Loans and borrowings (current)
Loans and borrowings (non-current)

18
22
22
21
21

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to their
short-term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on or near the
reporting date.
The carrying amounts of the current portion of loans and borrowings are reasonable approximation of fair value due
to the insignificant impact of discounting.
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28.

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
(b)

Determination of fair value (continued)
The fair values of current loans and borrowings are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows at market
incremental lending rate for similar types of lending, borrowing or leasing arrangements at the reporting date.

29.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and market price
risk.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these risks, which are executed
by the Head of Accounts and Finance. The audit committee provides independent oversight to the effectiveness of the risk
management process.
It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial years, the Group’s policy that no derivatives shall be
undertaken except for the use as hedging instruments where appropriate and cost-efficient. The Group and the Company
do not apply hedge accounting.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned financial
risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default on its
obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other
receivables. For other financial assets (including cash and bank balances), the Group and the Company minimise
credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased credit
risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Exposure to credit risk
At the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position.
Information regarding credit enhancements for trade and other receivables is disclosed in Note 18.
Credit risk concentration profile
The Group determines concentrations of credit risk by monitoring the country profile of its trade receivables on an
ongoing basis. The credit risk concentration profile of the Group’s trade receivables at the reporting date are as
follows:
Group
2011
RM

% of total

RM

% of total

778,081
64,886,435

1%
99%

5,142,835
70,632,942

7%
93%

65,664,516
=======

100%
=======

75,775,777
=======

100%
=======

By country:
Malaysia
People’s Republic of China

2010

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Information regarding trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired is disclosed in Note 18. Deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term investment that are neither past due nor impaired are placed with
or entered into with reputable financial institutions or companies with high credit ratings and no history of default.
Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 18.
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due
to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of
the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit facilities.
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s liabilities at the reporting date
based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

2011
RM

Group
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities
Company
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Total undiscounted financial
liabilities

On demand
or within one
year
RM

One to
five
years
RM

Over
five
years
RM

Total
RM

7,958,943
25,048,540

78,574,063
4,194,790

-

86,533,006
29,243,330

33,007,483
========

82,768,853
========

========

115,776,336
========

42,206
9,330

-

-

42,206
9,330

51,536
========

========

========

51,536
========
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from loans and borrowings and loans at
floating rates to or from related parties.
The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate debts.
Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk
At the reporting date, if interest rates had been basis 25 points lower/higher, with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit net of tax would have been RM105,120 higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of lower/higher interest
expense on floating rate loans and borrowings, and higher/lower interest income and expense on floating rates loan to
or from related parties. The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is base on the
currently observable market environment.
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
The following table sets out the carrying amounts, the weighted average effective interest rates (WAEIR) as at the balance sheet
date, and the remaining maturities of the Group’s and Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risks:

Note

WAEIR
%

Within
1 Year
RM

Amounts due from
related companies

18

5.75

71,936,045

Amount due to
holding company

22

6.07

-

Amounts due to
related companies

22

6.07

(2,336,132)

Bankers’ acceptance

21

3.27

Revolving credit

21

3.18

1-2
Years
RM

2-3
Years
RM

4-5
Years
RM

3-4
Years
RM

Total
RM

At 31 January 2011
Group
Floating rate

Term loan

-

-

-

71,936,045

-

-

-

(78,574,063)

-

-

-

-

(2,336,132)

(21,644,000)

-

-

-

-

(21,644,000)

(2,000,000)

-

-

-

-

(2,000,000)

(78,574,063)

(1,560,000) (1,560,000) (1,560,000) (910,000)
21
3.10
(5,590,000)
=============================================================

Company
Floating rate
Amounts due from
subsidiaries

13,231,988
18
6.07
- 13,231,988
=============================================================
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Note

WAEIR
%

Within
1 Year
RM

Amounts due from
related companies

18

5.75

71,931,207

Amount due to
holding company

22

5.55

-

Amounts due to
related companies

22

5.55

(34,652,299)

Bankers’ acceptance

22

2.47

Revolving credit

22

2.53

1-2
Years
RM

2-3
Years
RM

3-4
Years
RM

4-5
Years
RM

Total
RM

At 31 January 2010
Group
Floating rate

Term loan

-

-

-

71,931,207

-

-

-

(79,082,425)

-

-

-

-

(34,652,299)

(7,701,000)

-

-

-

-

(7,701,000)

(2,000,000)

-

-

-

-

(2,000,000)

(79,082,425)

(1,395,210) (1,430,921) (1,467,546) (1,505,108) (1,351,215) (7,150,000)
22
2.58
=============================================================

Company
Floating rate
Amount due from
holding company

18

5.55

10,283,735

-

-

-

-

10,283,735

Amounts due from
subsidiaries

18

5.55

3,498,529

-

-

-

-

3,498,529

Amounts due from a
related companies

18

5.55

2,416

-

-

-

-

2,416

Amounts due to a
subsidiary

22

5.55

-

-

-

-

Amounts due to
related companies

(394,490)

(394,490)

(7,469)
22
5.55
(7,469)
=============================================================

Interest on financial instruments subject to floating interest rates is contractually repriced annually. Interest on financial instruments
at fixed rates is fixed until the maturity of the instrument. The other financial instruments of the Company that are not included
in the above tables are not subject to interest rate risks.
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29. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(d)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than in RM. The foreign currency in which the transactions are denominated are mainly US Dollar (“USD”) and
Sterling Pound (GBP).
Approximately 79.2% (2010: 87.9%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in foreign currencies whilst and 96.6%
(2010: 97.4%) of cost of sales are denominated in RM. The Group’s trade receivable and trade payable balances at the
reporting date have similar exposures.
The Group has also hold cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies for working capital purposes. At
the reporting date, such foreign currency balances (mainly in USD) amounted to RM6,611,614 (2010: RM46,284) for
the Group.
The Group requires all of its operating entities to use forward currency contracts to eliminate the currency exposures
on any individual transactions for which payment is anticipated more than one month after the Group has entered into
a firm commitment for a sale or purchase. The forward currency contracts must be in the same currency as the hedged
item. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into forward contracts until a firm commitment is in place. It is the Group’s
policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise hedge
effectiveness.
Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit net of tax to a reasonably possible change in the
USD and GBP exchange rates against the functional currency of the Group entities, with all other variables held
constant.
Profit net of tax
Group
2011

Company
2011

RM/USD - strengthened 5%
- weakened 5%

4,260,973
(4,260,973)

-

RM/GBP - strengthened 5%
- weakened 5%

510,927
(510,927)
=======

=======
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30. Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a good credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support a balanced growth objective in its business and to maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the
free cash flow position. To achieve this objective, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, issue new
shares or internal plan for explanation. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31 January 2011 and 31 January 2010.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debts divided by total capital plus net debts. The Group’s policy
is to keep the gearing ratio below 75%. The Group includes within net debts, loan and borrowings, trade and other payables,
less cash and bank balances. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of the parent.

Group

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

22

29,243,330
86,533,006

16,851,000
120,136,911

9,330
42,206

639,343

20

(11,452,088)

(2,194)

(25,795)

Note
Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Less: Cash and bank
balances
Net debts

Company

(3,322,437)

104,324,248
========

133,665,474
========

49,342
========

613,548
========

Equity attributable to the
owners of the parent

51,653,310

48,176,539

43,464,713

48,704,097

Total capital

51,653,310

48,176,539

43,464,713

48,704,097

155,977,558
========
66.9%
========

181,842,013
========
73.5%
========

43,514,055
========
0.1%
========

49,317,645
========
1.2%
========

Capital and net debts
Gearing ratio
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31. Segment information
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services, and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:
(i)

Oil palm products segment – Operation of oil palm plantations and kernel crushing plant.

(ii)

Cocoa products segment – manufacturing and sale of cocoa products, and trading of purchase and sale of dried cocoa
beans.

(iii)

Corporate segment – Group-level corporate service and treasury functions.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which, in certain
respects as explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial
statement. Group financing (including finance costs) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
operating segments.
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third
parties.
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31. Segment information (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets, liabilities and other information by business segment:
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31. Segment information (continued)
Notes: Nature of adjustments and eliminations to arrive at amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
A

Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation.

B

Additions of non-current assets consist of:

Property, plant and equipment
Biological assets

C

2010
RM

2,366,342
-

1,658,902
739,388

2,366,342
=======

2,398,290
=======

The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

Deferred tax assets
Tax recoverable
Unallocated amounts

D

2011
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

8,399
-

8,363
704,599
816,150

8,399
=======

1,529,112
=======

The following items are added to segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position:

Deferred tax liabilities
Borrowings
Income tax payable

2011
RM

2010
RM

6,338,070
29,243,330
505,916

6,293,031
16,851,000
-

36,087,316
=======

23,144,031
=======

32. Authorisation of financial statements for issue
The financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2011 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the directors on 23 May 2011.
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33. Supplementary information – breakdown of retained profits/(accumulated losses) into realised and unrealised
The breakdown of the retained profits/(accumulated losses) of the Group and of the Company as at 31 January 2011 into
realised and unrealised profits/(losses) is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad dated 25 March 2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of
Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Total (accumulated losses)/retained profits of the
Company and its subsidiaries
- Realised
- Unrealised

Less: Consolidation adjustments

Group
RM

Company
RM

(7,604,708)
(6,329,671)

3,352,412
8,399

(13,934,379)

3,360,811

8,086,626

(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings as per financial statements
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=======

3,360,811
=======

TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD
(Company No. 307097-A)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
Registered Office: 318, Teck Guan Regency, Jalan St. Patrick, Off Jalan Belunu, 91000 Tawau, Sabah.

Form of Proxy
Number of Shares

I/We,______________________________________________________________________________________________________
(Please use block letters)
of_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
(Full address)
being a member/members of TECK GUAN PERDANA BERHAD hereby appoint __________________________________________
____________________________of_____________________________________________________________________________
or failing him/her_____________________________________________________________________________________________
of_________________________________________________________________________________________________________
as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held at Theobroma
Conference Room, First Floor, Hotel Emas, Jalan Utara, 91000 Tawau, Sabah on Friday, 29 July 2011 at 9.00 A.M. and at any adjournment
thereof.

No.

For

1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 January 2011 together
with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.

To approve Directors’ fees amounting to RM36,000 for the year ended 31 January
2011.

3.

To re-elect Mr. Tang Amiy @ Tang Ah Mei who retires as a Director of the Company
pursuant to Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

4.

To re-elect Mr. Tham Vui Vun who retires as a Director of the Company pursuant to
Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

5.

To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the
Directors to fix their remuneration.
Special Business: - Approval to issue new ordinary shares pursuant to Section 132D of
the Companies Act, 1965.

6.
7.

Against

Special Business:Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Existing Recurrent Related Party
Transactions and Shareholders Mandate for Additional Recurrent Related Party
Transactions.

(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate box against each resolution how you wish your proxy to vote. If this proxy form is returned
without any indication as to how the proxy shall vote, the proxy will vote or abstain as he thinks fit.)

_______________________

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Dated this ________________ day of ____________________2011.
Notes:
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies (not more than two (2)) to attend
and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under
the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing or if such appointer is a corporation under its common seal or
the hand of its attorney.

2.

Where a member appoints more than one proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings
to be represented.

3.

All forms of proxy should be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office, 318, Teck Guan Regency, Jalan St. Patrick, Off Jalan Belunu,
91000 Tawau, Sabah not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

4.

Any alteration in this form must be initialled.
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